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THIS PROSPECTUS IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this Prospectus or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities,
bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

A copy of this Prospectus, together with the Application Form, the Excess Application Form and other documents specified in the paragraph headed “Documents
delivered to the Registrars of Companies” in Appendix III to this Prospectus have been registered by the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as required by Section
342C of the Companies Ordinance in Hong Kong. A copy of this Prospectus, together with copies of the Application Form and the Excess Application Form, have also
been filed with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda as required by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong, the
Securities and Futures Commission in Hong Kong, the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda and the Bermuda Monetary Authority take no responsibility as to the
contents of any document referred to above.

Dealings in the shares in Fortuna International Holdings Limited may be settled through the CCASS established and operated by HKSCC and you should consult your
licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional adviser for details of those settlement arrangements and how such arrangements may affect your rights
and interests.

Subject to the granting of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Offer Shares on the Stock Exchange, the Offer Shares will be accepted as eligible securities by
HKSCC for deposit, clearance and settlement in CCASS with effect from the commencement date of dealings in the Offer Shares on the Stock Exchange or such other
date as determined by HKSCC. Settlement of transactions between participants of the Stock Exchange on any trading day is required to take place in CCASS on the
second trading day thereafter. All activities under CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational Procedures in effect from time to time.

The Stock Exchange and the HKSCC take no responsibility for the contents of this prospectus, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this Prospectus.

FORTUNA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
� �  ! " # $ % & ' *

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 530)

OPEN OFFER OF 2,720,363,644 OFFER SHARES
AT HK$0.010 PER OFFER SHARE PAYABLE IN FULL ON ACCEPTANCE

(ON THE BASIS OF TWO OFFER SHARES FOR EVERY NEW SHARE HELD)

Underwriters

 3V Capital Limited

KINGSTON SECURITIES LIMITED
Onshine Securities Limited

It should be noted that the Underwriting Agreement contains provisions granting the Underwriters the right to terminate the Underwriting Agreement at any
time prior to 4:00 p.m. on the third Business Day immediately after the last day for acceptance of the Open Offer, if in the reasonable opinion of the
Underwriters:

(a) the success of the Open Offer would be affected by:

(i) the introduction of any new regulation or any change in existing law or regulation (or the judicial interpretation thereof) or other occurrence of
any nature whatsoever which may in the opinion of the Underwriters materially and adversely affect the business or the financial or trading
position or prospects of the Group as a whole; or

(ii) the occurrence of any local, national or international event or change, whether or not forming part of a series of events or changes occurring or
continuing before, and/or after the date the Underwriting Agreement, of a political, military, financial, economic or other nature (whether or not
ejusdem generis with any of the foregoing), or in the nature of any local, national or international outbreak or escalation of hostilities or armed
conflict, or affecting local securities markets which may, in the opinion of the Underwriters materially and adversely affect the business or the
financial or trading position or prospects of the Group as a whole; or

(iii) any material adverse change in the business or in the financial or trading position of the Group as a whole; or

(b) any material adverse change in market conditions (including, without limitation, a change in fiscal or monetary policy or foreign exchange or currency
markets, suspension or restriction of trading in securities) occurs which in the opinion of the Underwriters makes it inexpedient or inadvisable to
proceed with the Open Offer; or

(c) the circular or the prospectus of the Open Offer when published contain information (either as to business prospects or the condition of the Group or as
to its compliance with any laws or the Listing Rules or any applicable regulations) which has not prior to the date the Underwriting Agreement been
publicly announced or published by the Company and which may in the opinion of the Underwriters is material to the Group as a whole and is likely to
affect the success of the Open Offer or might cause a prudent investor not to accept the Offer Shares provisionally allotted to it;

Emperor, on behalf of the Underwriters, has the power to terminate the Underwriting Agreement. If Emperor exercises such power, the obligations of the
Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement shall cease and determine and the Open Offer will not proceed and no party shall be entitled to claim
against the others except for any antecedent breach prior to termination.

Shareholders should note that the New Shares have been dealt with on an ex-entitlement basis from Thursday, 23rd March 2006. Any dealings in the New
Shares will take place while the conditions to which the Open Offer is subject remain unfulfilled. Any Shareholder or other person dealing in such New
Shares up to the date on which all conditions to which the Open Offer is subject are fulfilled (which is expected to be on 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 21st April
2006), will accordingly bear the risk that the Open Offer cannot become unconditional and may not proceed. Shareholders and potential investors are
advised to exercise caution when dealing in the New Shares and consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt about their positions.

*  for identification purposes only
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It should be noted that the Underwriting Agreement contains provisions granting the
Underwriters the right to terminate the Underwriting Agreement at any time prior to 4:00 p.m. on
the third Business Day immediately after the last day for acceptance of the Open Offer, if in the
reasonable opinion of the Underwriters:

(a) the success of the Open Offer would be affected by:

(i) the introduction of any new regulation or any change in existing law or regulation
(or the judicial interpretation thereof) or other occurrence of any nature
whatsoever which may in the opinion of the Underwriters materially and adversely
affect the business or the financial or trading position or prospects of the Group
as a whole; or

(ii) the occurrence of any local, national or international event or change, whether
or not forming part of a series of events or changes occurring or continuing
before, and/or after the date the Underwriting Agreement, of a political, military,
financial, economic or other nature (whether or not ejusdem generis with any of
the foregoing), or in the nature of any local, national or international outbreak
or escalation of hostilities or armed conflict, or affecting local securities markets
which may, in the opinion of the Underwriters materially and adversely affect
the business or the financial or trading position or prospects of the Group as a
whole; or

(iii) any material adverse change in the business or in the financial or trading position
of the Group as a whole; or

(b) any material adverse change in market conditions (including, without limitation, a
change in fiscal or monetary policy or foreign exchange or currency markets, suspension
or restriction of trading in securities) occurs which in the opinion of the Underwriters
makes it inexpedient or inadvisable to proceed with the Open Offer; or

(c) the circular or the prospectus of the Open Offer when published contain information
(either as to business prospects or the condition of the Group or as to its compliance
with any laws or the Listing Rules or any applicable regulations) which has not prior
to the date the Underwriting Agreement been publicly announced or published by the
Company and which may in the opinion of the Underwriters is material to the Group
as a whole and is likely to affect the success of the Open Offer or might cause a
prudent investor not to accept the Offer Shares provisionally allotted to it;

Emperor, on behalf of the Underwriters, has the power to terminate the Underwriting
Agreement. If Emperor exercises such power, the obligations of the Underwriters under the
Underwriting Agreement shall cease and determine and the Open Offer will not proceed and no
party shall be entitled to claim against the others except for any antecedent breach prior to
termination.
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DEFINITIONS

In this Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the

following meanings:

“3V Capital” 3V Capital Limited, a licensed corporation to carry on types 1

and 4 regulated activities as defined in schedule 5 of the SFO

“Acquisition” the acquisition of the entire interests in State Empire Limited at

the consideration of approximately HK$101 million, details of

which are stated in the announcement of the Company dated 28th

December 2005

“Announcement” the announcement of the Company dated 27th January 2006 in

relation to the Capital Reorganisation, Share Consolidation and

Open Offer

“Application Form” the application form for use by the Qualifying Shareholders to

apply for the Offer Shares

“Board” board of Directors

“Business Day” a day, other than Saturday and Sunday, on which banks in Hong

Kong are open for business

“Capital Reorganisation” the Capital Reduction, the Share Subdivision, the Share Premium

Reduction, the transfer of the credit arising from the Share

Premium Reduction and Capital Reduction to the contributed

surplus account and the elimination of the accumulated losses of

the Company, details of which are set out in the section headed

“Proposed Capital Reorganisation and Share Consolidation” of

the Circular

“Capital Reduction” the proposed reduction of the issued share capital of the Company

from HK$0.01 each per Share to HK$0.0001 each

“CCASS” the Central Clearing and Settlement System established and

operated by HKSCC

“Company” Fortuna International Holdings Limited, an exempted company

incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability, the securities of

which are listed on the Stock Exchange

“Companies Act” Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended from time to time)

“Companies Ordinance” Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong
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“Circular” the circular of the Company dated 22nd February 2006 in relation

to the Capital Reorganisation, Share Consolidation and Open Offer

“Director(s)” director(s) of the Company

“Emperor” Emperor Securities Limited, a licensed corporation to carry on

types 1 and 4 regulated activities as defined in schedule 5 of the

SFO

“Enlarged Group” the Group as enlarged upon completion of the Acquisition

“Excluded Overseas Shareholders” the Overseas Shareholder(s) whose name(s) appear on the register

of members of the Company on the Record Date and whose address

is/are in a place(s) outside Hong Kong where, the Directors, based

on legal opinions provided by legal advisers of the Company,

consider it necessary or expedient to exclude such Shareholder

from the Open Offer on account either of the legal restrictions

under the laws of the place of his/her/its registered address or the

requirements of the relevant regulatory body or stock exchange in

that place

“Excess Application Forms” the excess application forms for use by the Qualifying Shareholders

to apply for excess Offer Shares not initially taken up under the

Open Offer

“Group” the Company and its subsidiaries

“HKSCC” Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited

“Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s

Republic of China

“Independent Shareholders” Shareholders other than Directors (excluding independent non-

executive Directors), chief executive of the Company and their

associates

“Kingston” Kingston Securities Limited, a licensed corporation to carry on

type 1 regulated activity as defined in schedule 5 of the SFO

“Last Trading Day” 25th January 2006, being the last trading day prior to the

suspension of the trading of the Shares pending the release of the

Announcement
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“Latest Practicable Date” 27th March 2006, being the latest practicable date prior to printing

of this Prospectus for ascertaining certain information for inclusion

in this Prospectus

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange

“New Preference Share(s)” the convertible preference share(s) of HK$100,000 each in the

share capital of the Company after the Capital Reorganisation and

Share Consolidation became effective on 20th March 2006

“New Share(s)” the ordinary shares(s) of HK$0.001 each in the existing share

capital of the Company after the Capital Reorganisation and Share

Consolidation became effective on 20th March 2006

“Open Offer” the issue of the Offer Shares by way of open offer at a price of

HK$0.010 per Offer Share on the basis of two Offer Shares for

every New Share then held on the Record Date

“Offer Share(s)” New Shares to be issued pursuant to the Open Offer

“Onshine” Onshine Securities Limited, a licensed corporation to carry on

types 1, 4 and 9 regulated activities as defined in schedule 5 of

the SFO

“Overseas Shareholders” Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of

the Company as at the close of the business on the Record Date

and whose addresses as shown on such register are outside Hong

Kong

“Prospectus” this prospectus issued by the Company in relation to the Open

Offer

“Prospectus Documents” the Prospectus, the Application Form and Excess Application Form

in relation to the Open Offer

“Qualifying Shareholders” the Shareholder(s) whose name(s) appeared on the register of

members of the Company as at the close of business on the Record

Date and not being the Excluded Overseas Shareholders

“Record Date” 29th March 2006, the record date by reference to which

entitlements to the Open Offer is determined

“SFO” The Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of

Hong Kong)
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“SGM” the special general meeting of the Company held on 20th March

2006 for approving the Open Offer, the Capital Reorganisation

and the Share Consolidation

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the

Company in existence prior to 20th March 2006, being the effective

date of the Capital Reduction and Share Subdivision

“Share Consolidation” the consolidation of every 10 issued and unissued shares of the

Company of HK$0.0001 each resulting from the Capital

Reorganisation into one New Share and the consolidation of every

10 unissued convertible preference shares of the Company of

HK$10,000 each resulting from the Share Subdivision into one

New Preference Share

“Share Premium Reduction” the cancellation of the entire amount standing to the credit of the

share premium account of the Company

“Share Subdivision” the subdivision of the unissued authorised share of HK$0.01 each

into 100 ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each and the subdivision

of each unissued authorised convertible preference share of the

Company of HK$1,000,000 each into 100 convertible preference

shares of HK$10,000 each

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of the Share(s) or where the context requires, the New

Share(s)

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“Subscription Price” subscription price of HK$0.010 per Offer Share

“Underwriters” Emperor, 3V Capital, Kingston and Onshine

“Underwriting Agreement” the underwriting agreement dated 26th January 2006 in relation

to the Open Offer entered into between the Company and the

Underwriters

“HK$” Hong Kong dollars

“%” per cent.
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The expected timetable for the Open Offer is set out below:

2006

Latest time for acceptance and payment of Offer Shares  . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 18th April

Latest time for the Open Offer to become unconditional  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 21st April

Announcement of results of the Open Offer  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Monday, 24th April

Despatch of refund cheques in respect of wholly unsuccessful
or partially unsuccessful applications for excess Offer Shares  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Tuesday, 25th April

Despatch of certificates for Offer Shares  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Tuesday, 25th April

Notes:

1. Dealings in fully-paid Offer Shares will commence as soon as the relevant Shareholders receive the share certificates for
the Offer Shares.

2. If there is:
• a tropical cyclone warning signal number 8 or above, or
• a “black” rainstorm warning
(i) in force in Hong Kong at any local time before 12:00 noon and no longer in force after 12:00 noon on Tuesday,

18th April 2006, the latest time of acceptance of and payment for the Offer Shares will not take place at 4:00 p.m.
on 18th April 2006, but will be extended to 5:00 p.m. on the same day instead;

(ii) in force in Hong Kong at any local time between 12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 18th April 2006, the
latest time of acceptance of and payment for the Offer Shares will not take place on 18th April 2006, but will be
rescheduled to 4:00 p.m. on the following Business Day which does not have either of those warnings in force at
any time between 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.

If the latest time for acceptance of and payment for the Offer Shares does not take place on Tuesday 18th April 2006, the
dates mentioned above may be affected. An announcement will be made by the Company in such event.

3. Dates or deadlines specified in this Prospectus for events in the timetable for the Open Offer are indicative only and may
be extended or varied by agreement between the Company and the Underwriters, and subject to the approval by the Stock
Exchange of such amendments. Any consequential changes to the expected timetable will be published or notified to the
Shareholders appropriately.
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FORTUNA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
� �  ! " # $ % & ' *

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 530)

Executive Directors: Registered Office:

Kwok Ying Chuen Canon’s Court

Yu Won Kong, Dennis 22 Victoria Street

Wong Tak Chung, Andrew Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Tso Hon Sai, Bosco Principal Office:

Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent Suite 3301

Cheng Wing Keung, Raymond Tower 1, Lippo Centre

89 Queensway

Hong Kong

30th March 2006

To the Shareholders

Dear Sir/Madam,

OPEN OFFER OF 2,720,363,644 OFFER SHARES
AT HK$0.010 PER OFFER SHARE PAYABLE IN FULL ON ACCEPTANCE

(ON THE BASIS OF TWO OFFER SHARES FOR EVERY NEW SHARE HELD)

INTRODUCTION

On 27th January 2006, the Company announced, inter alia, that it proposed to raise approximately

HK$27.2 million before expenses by issuing 2,720,363,644 Offer Shares at a subscription price of

HK$0.01 per Offer Share by way of an Open Offer, payable in full on application, on the basis of two

Offer Shares for every New Share held by the Qualifying Shareholders on the Record Date. The Open

Offer will not be available to the Excluded Overseas Shareholders. The Open Offer is fully underwritten

by the Underwriters and is subject to the terms and conditions of the Underwriting Agreement.

On 22nd February 2006, a Circular containing details regarding, inter alia, the Open Offer was

despatched to Shareholders. A copy of the Circular is available for inspection at such place and time as

set out in the paragraph headed “Documents available for inspection” in Appendix III to this Prospectus.

On 20th March 2006, the resolution in relation to the Open Offer was duly approved by the Independent

Shareholders at the SGM.

*  for identification purposes only
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This Prospectus sets out further information regarding the Open Offer, including information on

procedures for acceptance and payment, application for excess Offer Shares and financial information in

respect of the Group.

OPEN OFFER

Issue statistics

Basis of the Open Offer: two Offer Shares for every New Share held on

the Record Date

Number of existing New Shares in issue: 1,360,181,822 New Shares (as at the Latest

Practicable Date)

Number of Offer Shares: 2,720,363,644 Offer Shares

Underwriters: Emperor, 3V Capital, Kingston and Onshine

Subscription Price: HK$0.010 per Offer Share

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Company has no share options, warrants or other convertible
securities outstanding and the Company has no intention to issue any share options, warrants or other
convertible securities prior to the completion of the Open Offer.

Basis of the Open Offer

The Company will allot two Offer Shares for every New Share held by the Qualifying Shareholder
on the Record Date payable in full on acceptance. Based on the 1,360,181,822 New Shares in issue as at
the Latest Practicable Date, 2,720,363,644 Offer Shares will be issued under the Open Offer. The terms
of the Open Offer are agreed after arm’s length negotiation between the Company and the Underwriters.
The Directors consider that the terms of the Open Offer are fair and reasonable and in the best interest of
the Shareholders as a whole.
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Subscription Price

HK$0.010 per Offer Share, payable in full on acceptance.

The Subscription Price represents:

Subscription Price HK$0.01

(a) Closing price per Share quoted on the Stock Exchange HK$0.1
and assuming Share Consolidation has become effective
on the Last Trading Day

Discount 90%

(b) Theoretical ex-entitlement price calculated based on the HK$0.04
closing price per Share quoted on the Stock Exchange
and assuming Share Consolidation has become effective
on the Last Trading Day

Discount 75%

(c) Average closing price per Share for the last 10 full HK$0.102
trading days quoted on the Stock Exchange up to
the Last Trading Day and assuming Share Consolidation
has become effective

Discount 90%

(d) Net asset value per New Share based on the audited net HK$0.132
asset value of the Group of approximately based on
HK$179 million (as at 31st December 2004) 1,360,181,822 New Shares

Discount 92%

(e) Closing price per New Share quoted on the Stock Exchange HK$0.034
on the Latest Practicable Date

Discount 71%

(f) Theoretical ex-entitlement price calculated based on the HK$0.018
closing price per New Share quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the Latest Practicable Date

Discount 44%

The Subscription Price was agreed after arm’s length negotiation among the Company and the

Underwriters with reference to the prevailing market condition, market price of the Shares and the

liquidity of the Shares. The discount would be able to encourage the Shareholders to participate in the

Open Offer and thus enlarging the capital and shareholder base, which is beneficial to the Group and the

Shareholders as a whole. The Directors consider that the Subscription Price and the discount for the

Subscription Price are fair and reasonable.

Qualifying Shareholders

The Company is sending the Prospectus Documents to the Qualifying Shareholders only.
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To qualify for the Open Offer, a Shareholder must be registered as a member of the Company at

the close of business on the Record Date and not be an Excluded Overseas Shareholder.

The invitation to subscribe for the Offer Shares being made to the Qualifying Shareholders will

not be transferable or capable of renunciation and there will not be any trading of nil-paid entitlements of

the Offer Shares on the Stock Exchange.

Rights of Overseas Shareholders

The Prospectus Documents have not been and will not be registered or filed under the applicable

securities or equivalent legislation of any jurisdiction other than Hong Kong and Bermuda. Based on the

register of members of the Company as at the Record Date, there were one Shareholder in Australia

holding 300 New Shares (representing approximately 0.00002% of the existing issued share capital of the

Company), one Shareholder in United States of America holding 2,000 New Shares (0.00015%), one

Shareholder in Spain holding 220 New Shares (0.000016%), one Shareholder in Macau holding 10,000

New Shares (0.00074%) and two Shareholders in Canada holding an aggregate of 12,200 New Shares

(0.0009%). The Company has, in compliance with Rule 13.36(2)(a) of the Listing Rules, made enquiries

on the legality and feasibility in extending the Open Offer to such Overseas Shareholders.

(i) Macau and Spain

Based on the legal opinion from legal advisers in these two territories, the Directors are informed

that there are no restrictions to extend the Open Offer to those Overseas Shareholders whose registered

addresses are in Macau and Spain nor there are any restrictions in posting the Prospectus Documents to

them. As such, the Open Offer will be extended to those Overseas Shareholders in Macau and Spain.

Overseas Shareholders with registered address in Spain who have received the Prospectus

Documents, please note the following selling restrictions:

The Offer Shares may not be offered or sold in Spain except in accordance with the
requirements of the Spanish Securities Market Law (Ley 24/1988 de 28 de julio del
Mercado de Valores”) as amended and supplemented and any other decrees and
regulation related thereto. The Prospectus Documents have not been verified nor
registered in the administrative registries of the Spanish Securities and Exchange
Commission (“Comisión Nacional del Mercado de Valores”) and therefore a public
offer for subscription and sale of the Offer Shares shall not be promoted in Spain.

(ii) Australia

For those Overseas Shareholders whose registered address is in Australia, they will be considered

as Qualifying Shareholders and the Company will extend the Open Offer to them as the Company can

rely on exemptions from the provisions of the relevant securities laws and regulations in Australia. As

such, the Company will send to them the Prospectus Documents. However, for those Overseas Shareholders

with registered address in Australia receiving the Prospectus Documents, please be noted that:
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The Prospectus Documents have not been lodged with the Australian Securities &
Investments Commission and are not disclosure documents for the purposes of Australian
law. No offer or invitation is made in relation to the Offer Shares in Australia except as
permitted under Australian law pursuant for an exemption from the requirements to
make disclosure to investors pursuant to the Corporations Act 2001 (“Corporations
Act”). Restrictions on the resale of the Offer Shares in Australia may also apply under
Australia’s Corporations Act and professional advice should be obtained in such a
situation. This is not a securities recommendation or investment advice in Australia.
Shareholders should seek their own financial advice. The Prospectus Documents have
been prepared without taking into account any investors objectives, financial situation
or needs and before acting on it, investors should consider the appropriateness of the
information in this Prospectus having regarding to their own objectives, financial
situation and needs.

(iii) United States of America and Canada

For those Overseas Shareholders in United States of America and Canada, the Directors are informed

by the respective legal advisers that the Company will need to follow the respective requirements or

procedures of the regulatory bodies for offering the Offer Shares to such Overseas Shareholders. After

considering that the legal costs for compliance and making applications to relevant authorities if the

Offer Shares are to be offered to these Overseas Shareholders will likely to exceed the potential benefit

to the Company and the minimal size of shareholdings of such Overseas Shareholders, the Directors

concluded that it would be expedient to exclude the Overseas Shareholders in United States of America

and Canada from the Open Offer.

The Company is sending the Prospectus to the Excluded Overseas Shareholders for their information

only and the Company is not sending any Application Form or Excess Application Form to the Excluded

Overseas Shareholders. The entitlement of the Excluded Overseas Shareholders under the Open Offer

will be taken up by the Underwriters and/or Qualifying Shareholders who have applied for the excess

Offer Shares.

Status of the Offer Shares

The Offer Shares (when allotted, issued and fully paid) will rank pari passu in all respects with the

New Shares in issue on the date of allotment and issue of the Offer Shares. Holders of the Offer Shares

(when allotted, issued and fully paid) will be entitled to receive all future dividends and distributions

which are declared, made or paid on or after the date of allotment and issue of the Offer Shares.

Closing of register of members

The register of members of the Company has been closed from Monday, 27th March 2006 to

Wednesday 29th March 2006, both dates inclusive, to determine entitlements to participate in the Open

Offer. No transfer of New Shares has been registered during this period.
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Certificates of the Offer Shares

Subject to the conditions of the Open Offer being fulfilled, certificates for all fully-paid Offer

Shares are expected to be posted on or before Tuesday, 25th April 2006 to those Shareholders who have

validly applied and paid for the Offer Shares, at their own risks.

Fractions of Offer Shares

Given the Open Offer is made on the basis of two Offer Shares for every New Share held on the

Record Date, there will be no fraction of Offer Shares.

Listing and dealings

The Company has applied to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for the listing of, and

permission to deal in, the Offer Shares. Dealings in the Offer Shares will be subject to the payment of

stamp duty in Hong Kong.

Subject to the granting of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Offer Shares on the Stock

Exchange, the Offer Shares will be accepted as eligible securities by HKSCC for deposit, clearance and

settlement in CCASS with effect from the commencement date of dealings in the Offer Shares on the

Stock Exchange or such other date as determined by HKSCC. Settlement of transactions between

participants of the Stock Exchange on any trading day is required to take place in CCASS on the second

trading day thereafter. All activities under CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and

CCASS Operational Procedures in effect from time to time.

Permission of the Bermuda Monetary Authority

Permission under the Exchange Control Act 1972 of Bermuda (and regulations made thereunder)

has been received from the Bermuda Monetary Authority in respect of the issue of the New Shares

(which would include the Offer Shares) to persons regarded as non-residents of Bermuda for exchange

control purposes subject to the requirement that the New Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. In

granting such permission the Bermuda Monetary Authority accepts no responsibility for the financial

soundness of the Group or for the correctness of any statements made or opinions expressed in the

Prospectus Documents.

Professional tax advice recommended

The Shareholders and potential investors are recommended to consult their professional advisors if

they are in any doubt as to the taxation implications of subscribing for the Offer Shares, or about

purchasing, holding or disposing of or dealing in the New Shares/Offer Shares under the laws of jurisdiction

in which they are liable to taxation.

The Company and its directors, agents or advisors or any other person involved in the Open Offer,

do not accept any responsibility for any tax effects on, or liabilities of, any person resulting from

subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of, or dealing in the New Shares/Offer Shares.
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PROCEDURE FOR ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT

An Application Form is enclosed with this Prospectus and delivered to the Qualifying Shareholders

which entitles the Qualifying Shareholders to accept any number of Offer Shares provisionally allotted to

them. Qualifying Shareholders should note that they may accept any number of Offer Shares but are

assured of an allotment only up to the number set out in the Application Form. If you are a Qualifying

Shareholder and you wish to accept your assured allotment of Offer Shares to which you are entitled as

specified in the enclosed Application Form or you wish to accept any number less than your assured

entitlement, you must complete, sign and lodge the Application Form in accordance with the instructions

printed thereon, together with remittance for the aggregate subscription price in respect of such number

of Offer Shares you have accepted with the Hong Kong branch registrar of the Company, Secretaries

Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than

4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 18th April 2006. All remittances must be made in Hong Kong dollars and cheques

or cashier’s orders must be drawn on a bank account in Hong Kong and made payable to “Fortuna

International Holdings Limited – Open Offer Account” and crossed “Account Payee Only”.

It should be noted that unless the Application Form, together with the appropriate remittance, have
been lodged with the Hong Kong branch registrar of the Company by not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Tuesday, 18th April 2006, that assured entitlement and all rights thereunder will be deemed to have been
declined and will be cancelled.

If the conditions of the Underwriting Agreement are not fulfilled or the Underwriting Agreement is
terminated in accordance with its terms and conditions, the subscription monies will be refunded, without
interest, by sending a cheque made out to the relevant Shareholder named on the Application Form (or in
the case of joint Shareholders, to the first-named Shareholder) and crossed “Account Payee Only”,
through ordinary post at the risk of the relevant Shareholder(s) to the address specified in the register of
members of the Company on or before Tuesday, 25th April 2006.

The Application Form contains full information regarding the procedures to be followed if you
wish to accept only part of your assured entitlements under the Open Offer.

All cheques or cashier’s orders will be presented for payment upon receipt and all interest earned
on such moneys (if any) will be retained for the benefit of the Company. Any Application Form in
respect of which the cheque or cashier’s order is dishonoured on first presentation is liable to be rejected,
and in that event the assured entitlement and all rights thereunder will be deemed to have been declined
and will be cancelled.

The Application Form is for use only by the person(s) named therein and is not transferable.

No receipt will be issued in respect of any acceptance monies received.

APPLICATION FOR EXCESS OFFER SHARES

Under the Open Offer, Qualifying Shareholders may apply for any entitlements of the Excluded
Overseas Shareholders and any Offer Shares not taken up by the Qualifying Shareholders. Application
can be made by completing the Excess Application Form for excess Offer Shares and lodging the same
with a separate remittance for the excess Offer Shares being applied for.
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The Directors will allocate excess Offer Shares at their discretion on a fair and equitable basis.
However, no preference will be given to topping up odd lots to whole board lots. Shareholders or
potential investors should note that the number of excess Offer Shares which may be allocated to them
may be different where they make applications for excess Offer Shares by different means, such as
making applications in their own names as against through nominees who also hold Shares for other
Shareholders/investors. Shareholders and investors should consult their professional advisers if they are
in any doubt as to whether they should register their shareholding in their own names and apply for the
excess Offer Shares themselves. The detailed allocation basis for the excess applications is expected to
be announced in the announcement of results of the Open Offer on Monday, 24th April 2006.

If you are a Qualifying Shareholder and you wish to apply for excess Offer Shares in addition to
your assured allotment of Offer Shares to which you are entitled as specified in the enclosed Application
Form, you must complete, sign and lodge the Excess Application Form in accordance with the instructions
printed thereon, together with remittance for the aggregate subscription price in respect of such number
of excess Offer Shares you have applied with the Hong Kong branch registrar of the Company, Secretaries
Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than
4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 18th April 2006. All remittances must be made in Hong Kong dollars and cheques
or cashier’s order must be drawn on a bank account in Hong Kong and made payable to “Fortuna
International Holdings Limited – Excess Account” and crossed “Account Payee Only”. Secretaries Limited
will notify you of any allotment of the excess Offer Shares made to you, which allotment will be
allocated on a fair and reasonable basis to be decided at the sole discretion of the Directors.

It should be noted that unless the Excess Application Form, together with the appropriate remittance,
have been lodged with the Hong Kong branch registrar of the Company by not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Tuesday, 18th April 2006, the Excess Application Form is liable to be rejected.

If the conditions of the Underwriting Agreement are not fulfilled or the Underwriting Agreement is
terminated in accordance with its terms and conditions or no excess Offer Shares are allotted to you, the
subscription monies for excess Offer Shares will be refunded, without interest, by sending a cheque made
out to the relevant Shareholder named on the Excess Application Forms (or in the case of joint Shareholders,
to the first-named Shareholder) and crossed “Account Payee Only”, through ordinary post at the risk of
the relevant Shareholder(s) to the address specified in the register of members of the Company on or
before Tuesday, 25th April 2006.

The Excess Application Form contains full information regarding the procedures to be followed if
you wish to apply for excess Offer Shares in addition to your assured entitlements under the Open Offer.

All cheques or cashier’s orders will be presented for payment upon receipt and all interest earned
on such moneys (if any) will be retained for the benefit of the Company. Any Excess Application Form in
respect of which the cheque or cashier’s order is dishonoured on first presentation is liable to be rejected.

The Excess Application Form is for use only by person(s) named therein and is not transferable.

No receipt will be issued in respect of any monies received for application of excess Offer Shares.
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UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT DATED 26TH JANUARY 2006

Underwriters: Emperor, 3V Capital, Kingston, Onshine

Number of Offer Shares underwritten

(on the basis of 1,360,181,822 New Shares in

issue as at the Latest Practicable Date): 2,720,363,644 Offer Shares

Commission: 1% of the Subscription Price of the Offer

Shares underwritten by the Underwriters

The Open Offer is fully underwritten by the Underwriters.

The Underwriters are independent of the Company and its connected persons (as defined in the

Listing Rules) of the Company.

If no Shareholder subscribes for any Offer Shares, the Underwriters will procure subscribers/sub-

underwriters to take up the Offer Shares pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement on pro rata basis in

accordance with their respective percentages of the Offer Shares underwritten. If the Underwriters fail to

procure subscribers/sub-underwriters, the Underwriters have to subscribe the Offer Shares themselves

pursuant to the Underwritten Agreement.

After having made all reasonable enquiries and as per notices made pursuant to s.324 of Part XV

of the SFO received by the Company, it has come to the attention of the Company that Byford Group

Limited has entered into a conditional sub-underwriting agreement on 26th January 2006 with 3V Capital

to sub-underwrite 950,000,000 Offer Shares (representing approximately 23.28 % of the enlarged issued

share capital of the Company upon completion of the Open Offer) at the Subscription Price for a

commission of 0.75% on the Subscription Price of the Offer Shares underwritten. Byford Group Limited

is the beneficial owner of 14% interests in Pacific Glory Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company

and is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Ching Ping, Alex. Mr. Wong Ching Ping is the sole

beneficial owner of Leopard Vision Limited, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing

Rules) interested in 19.23% (as disclosed in the latest disclosure of interests notice published on the

Stock Exchange website) of Foundation Group Limited. Foundation Group Limited is the controlling

shareholder of Gold Venture Corporation Limited, which is interested in 5.73% of the existing issued

share capital of the Company. By virtue of its shareholding in the subsidiary of the Company, Byford

Group Limited is a connected person (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company. Neither Mr. Wong

Ching Ping nor Byford Group Limited is a Shareholder as at the Latest Practicable Date. Pursuant to

Rule 14A.31(3)(c) of the Listing Rules, the Open Offer will be a connected transaction exempt from the

reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements contained in Chapter 14A

of the Listing Rules.
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Termination of the Underwriting Agreement

It should be noted that the Underwriting Agreement contains provisions granting the
Underwriters the right to terminate the Underwriting Agreement at any time prior to 4:00 p.m. on
the third Business Day immediately after the last day for acceptance of the Open Offer, if in the
reasonable opinion of the Underwriters:

(a) the success of the Open Offer would be affected by:

(i) the introduction of any new regulation or any change in existing law or regulation
(or the judicial interpretation thereof) or other occurrence of any nature
whatsoever which may in the opinion of the Underwriters materially and adversely
affect the business or the financial or trading position or prospects of the Group
as a whole; or

(ii) the occurrence of any local, national or international event or change, whether
or not forming part of a series of events or changes occurring or continuing
before, and/or after the date the Underwriting Agreement, of a political, military,
financial, economic or other nature (whether or not ejusdem generis with any of
the foregoing), or in the nature of any local, national or international outbreak
or escalation of hostilities or armed conflict, or affecting local securities markets
which may, in the opinion of the Underwriters materially and adversely affect
the business or the financial or trading position or prospects of the Group as a
whole; or

(iii) any material adverse change in the business or in the financial or trading position
of the Group as a whole; or

(b) any material adverse change in market conditions (including, without limitation, a
change in fiscal or monetary policy or foreign exchange or currency markets, suspension
or restriction of trading in securities) occurs which in the opinion of the Underwriters
makes it inexpedient or inadvisable to proceed with the Open Offer; or

(c) the circular or the prospectus of the Open Offer when published contain information
(either as to business prospects or the condition of the Group or as to its compliance
with any laws or the Listing Rules or any applicable regulations) which has not prior
to the date the Underwriting Agreement been publicly announced or published by the
Company and which may in the opinion of the Underwriters is material to the Group
as a whole and is likely to affect the success of the Open Offer or might cause a
prudent investor not to accept the Offer Shares provisionally allotted to it;

Emperor, on behalf of the Underwriters, has the power to terminate the Underwriting
Agreement. If Emperor exercises such power, the obligations of the Underwriters under the
Underwriting Agreement shall cease and determine and the Open Offer will not proceed and no
party shall be entitled to claim against the others except for any antecedent breach prior to
termination.
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Conditions of the Open Offer

The Open Offer is conditional upon, among other things, the following conditions being fulfilled:

1. the passing by the Independent Shareholders of the resolutions at the SGM to approve the
Open Offer;

2. the Capital Reorganisation and Share Consolidation becoming effective;

3. the filing of the Prospectus Documents with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda in
accordance with the Companies Act no later than the despatch date of the Prospectus
Documents;

4. the delivery to the Stock Exchange and registration with the Registrar of Companies in
Hong Kong one copy of the Prospectus Documents in compliance with the Listing Rules
and Companies Ordinance;

5. the posting of the Prospectus Documents to Qualifying Shareholders on the date as agreed
between the Underwriters and the Company;

6. the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal
in, the Offer Shares;

7. if necessary, the Bermuda Monetary Authority granting consent to issue the Offer Shares;
and

8. the obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement becoming
unconditional and the Underwriting Agreement not being terminated in accordance with its
terms,

on or before the last day for termination of the Open Offer. If the above conditions have not been
fulfilled on or before the last day for termination of the Open Offer, the Open Offer will not proceed and
none of the parties of the Underwriting Agreement shall have any claims against the others.

WARNING OF THE RISKS IN TRADING OF THE NEW SHARES

If Emperor, on behalf of the Underwriters, terminates the Underwriting Agreement (see
paragraph headed “Termination of the Underwriting Agreement” above) or the conditions of the
Open Offer (see paragraph headed “Conditions of the Open Offer” above) are not fulfilled, the
Open Offer will not proceed.

Shareholders should note that the New Shares have been dealt with on an ex-entitlement
basis from Thursday, 23rd March 2006. Any dealings in the New Shares will take place while the
conditions to which the Open Offer is subject remain unfulfilled. Any Shareholder or other person
dealing in such New Shares up to the date on which all conditions to which the Open Offer is
subject are fulfilled (which is expected to be on 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 21st April 2006), will accordingly
bear the risk that the Open Offer cannot become unconditional and may not proceed.

Shareholders and potential investors are advised to exercise caution when dealing in the New
Shares and consult their professional advisers if they are in any doubt about their positions.
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

The shareholding structure of the Company upon completion of the Open Offer (on the basis of the

existing 1,360,181,822 New Shares in issue after the Capital Reorganisation and Share Consolidation

became effective on 20th March 2006) is as follows:

Assuming all
Assuming no Shareholders
Shareholders have fully

subscribed subscribed
for their for their

entitlements entitlements
Existing under the under the

shareholding (%) Open Offer (%) Open Offer (%)

Ample Glory Limited (Note 1) 197,077,191 14.49 197,077,191 4.83 591,231,573 14.49

Gold Venture Corporation Ltd. (Note 2) 77,991,062 5.73 77,991,062 1. 91 233,973,186 5.73

Mr. Yu Won Kong, Dennis (Note 3) 5,000,000 0.37 5,000,000 0.12 15,000,000 0.37

Emperor – – 1,025,363,644 25.13 – –

3V Capital and sub-underwriter – – 1,150,000,000 28.18 – –

Byford Group Limited (Note 4 and 5)

Kingston – – 345,000,000 8.45 – –

Onshine – – 200,000,000 4.90 – –

Public (other than the above Shareholders,

the Director and Underwriters) 1,080,113,569 79.41 1,080,113,569 26.47 3,240,340,707 79.41

Total 1,360,181,822 100.00 4,080,545,466 100.00 4,080,545,466 100.00

Note 1: Ample Glory Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Kwok Ying Leung, therefore, Mr. Kwok Ying Leung is deemed to
be interested in the 197,077,191 New Shares held by Ample Glory Limited. Ms. Cheung Lai Sheung, Winnie is
the spouse of Mr. Kwok Ying Leung, and therefore Ms. Cheung is also deemed to be interested in the 197,077,191
New Shares held by Ample Glory Limited.

Note 2: The 77,991,062 New Shares are beneficially owned by Gold Venture Corporation Limited. Gold Venture Corporation
Limited is 100% controlled by Value Place Investments Limited, which in turn 100% controlled by Foundation
Group Limited.

Note 3: Mr. Yu Won Kong, Dennis is a Director of the Company.

Note 4: Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, 3V Capital has agreed to underwrite 1,150,000,000 Offer Shares. Out of
the 1,150,000,000 Offer Shares underwritten by 3V Capital, Byford Group Limited has entered into a conditional
sub-underwriting agreement with 3V Capital to sub-underwrite 950,000,000 Offer Shares on 26th January 2006.
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Note 5: Byford Group Limited is the beneficial owner of 14% interests in Pacific Glory Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company and is a company wholly owned by Mr. Wong Ching Ping, Alex. Mr. Wong Ching Ping is the sole
beneficial owner of Leopard Vision Limited, which is a substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
interested in 19.23% of Foundation Group Limited. Foundation Group Limited is the controlling shareholder of
100% interests in Gold Venture Corporation Limited, which is interested in 5.73% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company.

Mr. Wong Ching Ping is deemed to be interested in the 950,000,000 Offer Shares sub-underwritten by Byford
Group Limited. Ms. Gomes Maria Da Silva Rubi Angela is the spouse of Mr. Wong Ching Ping, and therefore she
is also deemed to be interested in the 950,000,000 Offer Shares.

The substantial Shareholder namely Ample Glory Limited has not undertaken to subscribe for any

Offer Shares. Other than Mr. Dennis Yu (who is interested in 5,000,000 New Shares, representing 0.37%

of the total issued capital of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date), none of the Directors is

interested in the New Shares. None of the Directors has undertaken to take up any Offer Shares.

MAINTENANCE OF THE LISTING OF THE NEW SHARES

It is the intention of the Company to maintain the listing of the New Shares on the Stock Exchange

after the completion of the Open Offer.

The Stock Exchange has stated that if, at the date of completion of the Open Offer, less than 25%

of the total issued New Shares are held in the public or if the Stock Exchange believes that:

• a false market exists or may exist in the trading in the New Shares, or

• there are too few New Shares in public hands to maintain an orderly market,

then it will consider exercising its discretion to suspend trading in the New Shares until a sufficient

public float is attained. In this connection, it should be noted that upon completion of the Open Offer,

there may be insufficient public float for the New Shares and therefore trading in the New Shares may be

suspended until a sufficient level of public float is attained.

USE OF PROCEEDS AND REASONS FOR THE OPEN OFFER

The Company is an investment holding company of which its subsidiaries are principally engaged

in (i) cosmetic and skin care products distribution business; (ii) diamond trading; (iii) investment in

properties; (iv) general trading; (v) provision of advertising service such as digital printing and graphic

design for advertising, decoration and window dressing; (vi) wine distribution business in Hong Kong

and (vii) restaurant operation in Hong Kong.

The proceeds of the Open Offer will be approximately HK$27.2 million. After deducting the

expenses of approximately HK$900,000 in connection with the Open Offer, including underwriting

commission of approximately HK$270,000, printing and translation charges, financial advisory fee, legal

and accounting charges, the estimated net proceeds of the Open Offer will be approximately HK$26.3

million. Approximately HK$1.3 million of the proceeds will be used as general working capital of the

Group and approximately HK$25 million of it will be used for settling part of the consideration payable
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for the Acquisition of State Empire Limited by the Group (or for repayment of loans which the Group has

obtained for payment of the consideration). The Acquisition was approved by the Shareholders at a

general meeting of the Company on 27th February 2006 and is not yet completed as at the Latest

Practicable Date.

The Directors believe that the Open Offer is in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders

as it can enlarge the capital base of the Company. As stated in the announcement of the Company dated

28th December 2005 in relation to the Acquisition, the Company is now moving ahead to restructure

those existing business which are now operating at loss or at low profit margin, and at the same time

seeking for investment opportunities. The Acquisition is a milestone of the Company which enables the

Group to participate in the growing property market. With an optimistic future ahead, the enlarged

capital base resulting from the Open Offer will support the continuing development and daily operation

of the Group’s existing business activities while providing capital for the Company to invest in new

business. Therefore, the Open Offer will provide the Shareholders the opportunity to participate and to

benefit from the growth of the Group in the future. The proceeds will also be used to pay the consideration

of the Acquisition instead of incurring bank loans so that the gearing of the Group can be kept at a low

level. The Open Offer can also enlarge the shareholder base of the Company and therefore increase the

liquidity of the New Shares. As such, the Directors consider that the Open Offer is in the best interests of

the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

There was no fund raising exercise done during the twelve months prior of the date of the

Announcement.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is also drawn to the additional information set out in the Appendices to this

Prospectus.

By Order of the Board

Fortuna International Holdings Limited
Wong Tak Chung

Director
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A. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised and issued share capital of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date and

immediately following completion of the Open Offer will be as follows:

Authorised: HK$

250,000,000,000 New Shares of HK$0.001 each as at the 250,000,000.00

Latest Practicable Date

500 New Preference Shares of HK$100,000 50,000,000.00
each as at the Latest Practicable Date

Issued and fully paid:

1,360,181,822 New Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date 1,360,181.82

2,720,363,644 Offer Shares to be issued 2,720,363.64

4,080,545,466 New Shares in issue immediately following 4,080,545.46
the completion of the Open Offer

There are no arrangements under which future dividends will be waived or agreed to be waived by

the Company.

The New Shares in issue are listed on the Stock Exchange. No part of the share capital or any

other securities of the Company is listed or dealt in on any stock exchange other than the Stock Exchange

and no application is being made or is currently proposed or sought for the New Shares or Offer Shares

or any other securities of the Company to be listed or dealt in on any other stock exchange.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there are no outstanding options, convertible note or other

securities of the Company convertible into or giving right to subscribe for the New Shares.
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B. THREE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the audited financial results of the Group for each of the three
years ended 31st December 2004.

Year ended 31 December
2004 2003 2002

RESULT HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TURNOVER
Continuing operations 141,619 – –
Discontinuing operations 2,475 195,456 152,916
Discontinued operations – – –

144,094 195,456 152,916
Cost of sales (136,061) (125,410) (97,702)

Gross profit 8,033 70,046 55,214

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (52,114) (6,501) (5,879)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Continuing operations (47,180) (42,467) (27,220)
Discontinuing operations (182) 23,433 12,796
Discontinued operations – – (1,893)

(47,362) (19,034) (16,317)

NET (LOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS (50,682) (36,693) (27,953)

(LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic (0.48) cents (0.90) cents (0.70) cents

As at 31 December
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND 2004 2003 2002

MINORITY INTERESTS HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Restated)

Non-current assets 214,135 189,467 210,727
Current assets 93,983 377,230 265,128

Total asset 308,118 566,697 475,855
Current liabilities (83,729) (298,189) (216,580)

Total asset less current liabilities 224,389 268,508 259,275
Non-current liabilities (43,933) – (2,947)
Minority interests (1,078) (107,453) (96,451)

179,378 161,055 159,877
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C. AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP FOR THE TWO YEARS ENDED
31ST DECEMBER 2004

Set out below is the audited financial statements of the Group for the two years ended 31st
December 2004 as extracted from the Company’s annual report 2004.

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

TURNOVER
– Continuing operations 4 141,619 –
– Discontinuing operations 4, 9 2,475 195,456

144,094 195,456

Cost of sales (136,061) (125,410)

Gross profit 8,033 70,046

Other revenue and gains 4 16,541 2,470
Selling and distribution costs (1,023) (17,847)
Administrative expenses (37,739) (32,977)
Amortisation of goodwill (22,329) –
Write-off of long term receivables – (12,431)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (13,919) (4,210)
Impairment of a deposit for investment – (10,416)
Other operating expenses, net (1,678) (1,136)

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5 (52,114) (6,501)

Finance costs 6 (4,068) (12,533)
Share of profit of associates 8,820 –

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
– Continuing operations (47,180) (42,467)
– Discontinuing operations 9 (182) 23,433

(47,362) (19,034)

Taxation
– Continuing operations 8 (663) –
– Discontinuing operations 8, 9 – (6,229)
– Share of taxation attributable to associates 8 (2,554) –

(3,217) (6,229)
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2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

LOSS BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS (50,579) (25,263)

Minority interests (103) (11,430)

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS 10, 30(a) (50,682) (36,693)

LOSS PER SHARE 11

Basic (0.48) cents (0.90) cents

Diluted N/A N/A
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 12 78,946 175,064

Intangible assets 13 – 13,603

Goodwill 14 124,426 –

Interests in associates 16 – –

Long term investment 17 800 800

Investment securities 18 9,267 –

Deferred taxation 27 696 –

214,135 189,467

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 19 8,485 160,918

Trade receivables 20 12,568 13,317

Loan receivables 21 – 63,200

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 29,407 5,532

Pledged bank deposits 3,009 –

Cash and cash equivalents 22 40,514 134,263

93,983 377,230

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables 23 16,426 21,893

Accrued liabilities and other payables 22,927 30,158

Tax payable 694 2,439

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 24 41,846 218,679

Finance lease payables 25 1,836 –

Due to a minority shareholder 26 – 25,020

83,729 298,189

NET CURRENT ASSETS 10,254 79,041

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 224,389 268,508
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2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 24 42,881 –

Finance lease payables 25 313 –

Deferred taxation 27 739 –

43,933 –

MINORITY INTERESTS 1,078 107,453

179,378 161,055

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 28 130,018 79,868

Reserves 30(a) 49,360 81,187

179,378 161,055
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Consolidated Summary Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Total equity at 1 January

As previously reported 161,055 170,965

Prior year adjustment – (11,088)

As restated 161,055 159,877

Issue of shares 28, 30(a) 72,476 39,934

Share issue expenses 30(a) (717) (1,650)

Surplus on revaluation 30(a) 3,484 –

Exchange differences on translation of the

financial statements of overseas subsidiaries,

not recognised in the profit and loss account 30(a) (6,238) (413)

Net loss from ordinary activities attributable

to shareholders 30(a) (50,682) (36,693)

Total equity at 31 December 179,378 161,055
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (47,362) (19,034)
Adjustments for:

Finance costs 6 4,068 12,533
Share of profit of associates (8,820) –
Bank interest income 4 (133) (162)
Dividend income 4 (32) –
Other interest income 4 (2,428) (1,376)
Reversal of impairment provision on property,

plant and equipment 4 (4,669) –
Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 4 (3,773) (233)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 4 (3,278) –
Depreciation 5 2,608 15,458
Amortisation of intangible assets 5 – 1,360
Amortisation of goodwill 22,329 –
Write-off of long term receivables – 12,431
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 13,919 4,210
Impairment of a deposit for investment – 10,416
Impairment of a long term investment 5 – 712
Provision against amounts due from associates 5 – 424
Provision for inventories 5 458 –

Operating (loss)/profit before working capital changes (27,113) 36,739
Decrease in inventories 17,123 16,018
Decrease in trade receivables 25,867 270
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables 63,200 (63,200)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits

and other receivables (5,780) 1,638
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables (19,726) 1,008
Increase in accrued liabilities

and other payables 38,272 7,666
Exchange difference on working capital – (638)

Cash generated from/(used in) operations 91,843 (499)
Interest paid (3,969) (10,532)
Interest element on finance leases (99) (1)
Loan arrangement fees paid – (2,000)
Overseas taxes paid – (6,175)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded 4 –

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Continuing operations 104,908 28,264
Discontinuing operations (17,129) (47,471)

87,779 (19,207)
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2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 87,779 (19,207)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Settlement of long term receivables – 14,700
Interest received 2,561 1,538
Dividend received 32 –
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 12 (12,473) (6,145)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment 29,383 8,861
Acquisition of subsidiaries 31(b) (136,761) –
Disposal of subsidiaries 31(c) (5,287) –
Advances to associates – (24)
Advances to an investee – (518)
Purchases of investment securities (6,069) –
Deposit for investment – (3)
Decrease in pledged time deposits 7,724 –

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities
Continuing operations (120,890) 24,392
Discontinuing operations – (5,983)

(120,890) 18,409

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares 41,466 39,934
Share issue expenses 30(a) (717) (1,650)
Net (repayment)/drawdown of bank and

other borrowings (2,413) 76,145
Decrease in trust receipt loans (84,128) (1,249)
Decrease in due to a minority shareholder (25,020) (1,841)
Capital element of finance lease payments (1,034) (53)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities
Continuing operations (63,610) 33,126
Discontinuing operations (8,236) 78,160

(71,846) 111,286

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (104,957) 110,488

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 134,263 23,872
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net – (97)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 29,306 134,263

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 22 40,088 134,263
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity

of less than three months when required 22 426 –
Bank overdrafts, secured 24 (11,208) –

29,306 134,263
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Balance Sheet
31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 12 7 –

Interests in subsidiaries 15 182,591 87,523

Long term investment 17 800 800

183,398 88,323

CURRENT ASSETS

Other receivables 100 439

Cash and cash equivalents 14,317 41,287

14,417 41,726

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities and other payables 1,225 1,729

NET CURRENT ASSETS 13,192 39,997

196,590 128,320

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital 28 130,018 79,868

Reserves 30(b) 66,572 48,452

196,590 128,320

Notes to financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2004

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 8 October 1992. The registered office of the Company is located at Canon’s Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Group is located at Suite
3301, Tower I, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group disposed of and discontinued its manufacturing and trading of the Shao Xing wine and
acquired certain new businesses. The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in note 15
and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(which also include Statements of Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention except for the periodic remeasurement of investment properties as further explained
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2004. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated
from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal, respectively. All significant intercompany transactions
and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit and loss account to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint venture companies

A joint venture company is a company set up by contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture company operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture parties,
the duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The
profits and losses from the joint venture company’s operations and any distributions of surplus assets are shared
by the venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the terms of
the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Company does not have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture company;

(c) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture company’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture company; or

(d) a long term investment, if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture
company’s registered capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant
influence over, the joint venture company.

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of associates is included in the consolidated profit
and loss account and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting less any
impairment losses.
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Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition
over the Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of
acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years. In the case of associates, any unamortised goodwill is
included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified asset on the consolidated balance
sheet.

On disposal of subsidiaries or associates, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to the net assets at
the date of disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill which remains unamortised and any relevant
reserves, as appropriate. Any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated reserves at the time
of acquisition is written back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was
caused by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that was not expected to recur, and subsequent
external events have occurred which have reversed the effect of that event.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates represents the excess of the Group’s
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date of acquisition, over the cost
of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to expectations of future losses and expenses that are identified in the
acquisition plan and that can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable liabilities as at the date
of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised as income in the consolidated profit and loss
account when the future losses and expenses are recognised.

To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at the
date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account on a systematic
basis over the remaining average useful life of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The amount of any
negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the acquired non-monetary assets is recognised as income
immediately.

In the case of associates, any negative goodwill not yet recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account is
included in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as a separately identified item on the consolidated balance
sheet.

On disposal of subsidiaries or associates, the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to the net assets at
the date of disposal, including the attributable amount of negative goodwill which has not been recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account and any relevant reserves as appropriate.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether there is any indication of impairment of any asset,
or whether there is any indication that an impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in prior years may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for that in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit and loss account in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount when the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than investment properties and construction in progress, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each asset over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Medium term land use right Over the term of the relevant land use right
Leasehold land and buildings 2% – 5%
Machinery and equipment 9% – 25%
Furniture and fixtures 9% – 25%
Motor vehicles 18% – 20%
Wine jugs 5%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises all
construction costs and other direct costs attributable to such projects, including borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate categories
of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interest in land and buildings in respect of which construction work and development
have been completed and which are intended to be held on a long term basis for their investment potential, any
rental income being negotiated at arm’s length. Such properties are not depreciated and are stated at their open
market value based on annual professional valuations performed at the end of each financial year.

Changes in the values of investment properties are dealt with as movements in the investment property revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on a portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is
charged to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and loss
account to the extent of the deficit previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the investment property revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is released to the profit and loss account.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases
are included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the profit and loss account so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets and rentals receivables under the operating leases are credited to the profit and loss
account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets represented the production technology and knowhow in setting up new manufacturing facilities
of a subsidiary, Dong Feng Shao Xing Wine Co., Ltd. (“Dong Feng”) in 1994. The investment was disposed of
during the year. The value of the intangible assets represented the excess of the agreed contribution by the other
joint venture partner pursuant to the joint venture agreement over the actual fair value of tangible assets contributed
by the joint venture partner into Dong Feng and was being amortised on the straight-line basis over the 20-year
tenure of Dong Feng.

Long term investments

Long term investments in unlisted equity securities, intended to be held for a continuing strategic or long term
purpose, are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an individual investment basis.

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its carrying amount has occurred, unless there is evidence
that the decline is temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced to its fair value, as estimated by the
directors. The amount of the impairment is charged to the profit and loss account for the period in which it arises.
When the circumstances and events which led to the impairment in value cease to exist and there is persuasive
evidence that the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount of the impairment
previously charged is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the amount previously charged.

Investment securities

Investment securities are investments in listed and unlisted securities, intended to be held for a long term
purpose, and are stated at cost less any provisions for impairment in values on an individual basis.

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its carrying amount has occurred, unless there is evidence
that the decline is temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced to its fair value, as estimated by the
directors. The amount of the impairment is charged to the profit and loss account for the period in which it arises.
When the circumstances and events which led to the impairment in value cease to exist and there is persuasive
evidence that the new circumstances and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount of the impairment
previously charged is credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the amount previously charged.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted average
basis and, in case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred taxation. Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss account, or in
equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly in equity.

Deferred taxation is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences:

• except where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax assets and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utilised:

• except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from negative
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms; and

(c) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking into account the principal outstanding and effective
interest rates applicable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable
exchange rates ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries and associates are translated into Hong Kong
dollars using the net investment method. The profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries and associates are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their balance sheets
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting
translation differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flow. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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Employee benefits

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit and loss account as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China are members of the Central Pension
Scheme operated by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) government. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the Central Pension Scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the subsidiaries with respect to the Central Pension Scheme is to meet the required contributions
under the Central Pension Scheme. The contributions are charged to the profit and loss account as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the Central Pension Scheme.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. The financial impact of share options
granted under the share option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such
time as the options are exercised, and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss account or balance sheet for
their cost. Upon the exercise of share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share over the
nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the share premium account. Options which are
cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary segment reporting basis, by business segment.
In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the segments based on the location
of the customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. No further
geographical segment information is presented as over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
based in Hong Kong, and over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in Hong Kong.

The Group was previously engaged in the manufacturing and trading of Shao Xing wine and such operations were
disposed of during the year. The Group is currently organised into seven operating divisions, namely, property
investment, skin and health care, trading of jewellery, trading of steel, trading of wine, artwork design and trading
of other products.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted through negotiations between the respective segments.

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, results and certain asset, liability and expenditure information for the
Group’s business segments.

2004
Group

Discontinuing
Continuing Operations Operations

Manufacturing
and

Trading of trading of
Property Skin and Trading of Trading of Trading of Artwork other Shao Xing

investment health care jewellery steel wine design products wine Eliminations Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customer – 11,899 39,068 81,148 2,124 3,159 4,221 2,475 – 144,094

Intersegment sales – – – 6,229 – – – – (6,229) –

Other revenue and gains 11,648 398 720 271 141 1 6 – – 13,185

Total 11,648 12,297 39,788 87,648 2,265 3,160 4,227 2,475 (6,229) 157,279

Segment results 6,916 (24,506) (5,230) (1,001) (890) (11,045) (14,328) (182) – (50,266)

Unallocated income 3,356

Unallocated expenses (5,204)

Loss from operating activities (52,114)

Finance costs (4,068)

Share of profit of associates 8,820

Loss before taxation (47,362)

Taxation (3,217)

Loss before minority interests (50,579)

Minority interests (103)

Net loss from ordinary activities

attributable to shareholders (50,682)
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2004
Group

Discontinuing
Continuing Operations Operations

Manufacturing
and

Trading of trading of
Property Skin and Trading of Trading of Trading of Artwork other Shao Xing

investment health care jewellery steel wine design products wine Eliminations Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment assets 101,169 45,704 40,770 50,368 4,910 27,986 11,272 – – 282,179

Unallocated assets 25,939

Total assets 308,118

Segment liabilities 5,455 12,310 5,269 4,456 960 3,666 7,078 – – 39,194

Unallocated liabilities 88,468

Total liabilities 127,662

Other segment information:

Depreciation and amortisation 196 12,076 5,296 2,624 51 2,759 1,910 – – 24,912

Unallocated amounts 25

Total 24,937

Amortisation of intangible assets – – – – – – – – – –

Impairment of a deposit for

investment, unallocated –

Impairment of a long term

investment, unallocated –

Impairment of property, plant

and equipment, net of amount

written back, unallocated –

Capital expenditure 10,704 1,327 9 3 37 221 172 – – 12,473



– 38 –

APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

2003
Group

Discontinuing
Continuing Operations Operations

Manufacturing
and

Trading of trading of
Property Skin and Trading of Trading of Trading of Artwork other Shao Xing

investment health care jewellery steel wine design products wine Eliminations Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers – – – – – – – 195,456 – 195,456

Intersegment sales – – – – – – – – – –

Other revenue and gains – – – – – – – – – –

Total – – – – – – – 195,456 – 195,456

Segment results – – – – – – – 35,293 – 35,293

Unallocated income 1,910

Unallocated expenses (43,704)

Loss from operating activities (6,501)

Finance costs (12,533)

Share of profit of associates –

Loss before taxation (19,034)

Taxation (6,229)

Loss before minority interests (25,263)

Minority interests (11,430)

Net loss from ordinary activities

attributable to shareholders (36,693)
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2003
Group

Discontinuing
Continuing Operations Operations

Manufacturing
and

Trading of trading of
Property Skin and Trading of Trading of Trading of Artwork other Shao Xing

investment health care jewellery steel wine design products wine Eliminations Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Segment assets – – – – – – – 413,391 – 413,391

Unallocated assets 153,306

Total assets 566,697

Segment liabilities – – – – – – – 292,100 – 292,100

Unallocated liabilities 6,089

Total liabilities 298,189

Other segment information:

Depreciation and amortisation – – – – – – – 15,037 – 15,037

Unallocated amounts 421

Total 15,458

Amortisation of intangible assets – – – – – – – 1,360 – 1,360

Impairment of a deposit for

investment, unallocated 10,416

Impairment of a long term

investment, unallocated 712

Impairment of property, plant

and equipment, net of amount

written back, unallocated –

Capital expenditure – – – – – – – 6,145 – 6,145
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4. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of turnover, other revenue and gains is as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Turnover
– Continuing operations 141,619 –
– Discontinuing operations 2,475 195,456

144,094 195,456

Other revenue and gains
Other revenue

Bank interest income 133 162
Dividend income 32 –
Other interest income 2,428 1,376
Reversal of impairment provision on property,

plant and equipment 4,669 –
Rental income from leasing of property, plant and equipment 958 42
Others 1,270 657

9,490 2,237

Gains
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,773 233
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 3,278 –

7,051 233

16,541 2,470
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5. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss from operating activities is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Group
2004 2003

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost of inventories sold 136,061 125,410
Auditors’ remuneration 583 800
Depreciation* 12 2,608 15,458
Amortisation of intangible assets* 13 – 1,360
Impairment of a long term investment*** 17 – 712
Provision against amounts due from associates*** 16 – 424
Staff costs (excluding directors’ remuneration (note 7)):

Wages and salaries 13,389 20,451
Pension scheme contributions 799 278
Forfeited contributions – (55)

Net pension contributions** 799 223

14,188 20,674

Provision for inventories 458 –
Minimum lease payments under operating leases on

land and buildings 1,972 1,797
Exchange losses, net 33 706

* Included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

** There were no forfeited retirement scheme contributions available at the balance sheet date to reduce
contributions in future years (2003: Nil).

*** Included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

6. FINANCE COSTS

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts wholly repayable
within five years 2,774 7,478

Interest on other borrowings wholly repayable within five years 247 3,054
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable after five years 948 –
Interest on finance leases 99 1
Loan arrangement fees – 2,000

4,068 12,533
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7. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees 198 400

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,900 2,081
Performance related bonuses – 3,700
Pension scheme contributions 25 21

2,925 5,802

3,123 6,202

Fees include HK$135,667 (2003: HK$355,000) payable to the independent non-executive directors. There were
no other emoluments payable to the independent non-executive directors during the year (2003: Nil).

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the bands is as follows:

Number of directors
2004 2003

Nil – HK$1,000,000 5 11
HK$1,000,001 – HK$1,500,000 2 –
HK$4,000,001 – HK$4,500,000 – 1

7 12

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, two directors were granted share options in respect of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company’s ultimate holding company, further details of which are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements. No value in respect of the share options granted during the year has been charged to the
profit and loss account, or is otherwise included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

Five highest paid employees

Of the five highest paid employees during the year, two (2003: five) were executive directors of the Company
whose remuneration are set out above. The remuneration of the remaining three highest paid individuals in 2004
(2003: Nil) are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits 1,966 –
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 31 –

1,997 –

During the year, one of the highest paid employees, who was an executive director, were granted 50,000,000
share options in respect of his services to the Group, further details of which are included in the disclosures in
note 29 to the financial statements. No value in respect of the share options granted during the year has been
charged to the profit and loss account, or is otherwise included in the above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.
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8. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Provision for the year:
Group

Continuing operations
Current – Hong Kong

Charge for the year 903 –
Under provision in prior years 4 –

Deferred (Note 27) (244) –

663 –

Discontinuing operations
Current – Elsewhere – 6,229

Share of taxation attributable to associates 2,554 –

Total charge for the year 3,217 6,229

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to the loss before taxation using statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss before taxation (47,362) (19,034)

Taxation at the statutory rate of 17.5% (2003: 17.5%) (8,289) (3,331)
Higher taxation rates of other countries 1,009 2,538
Income not subject to taxation (17,229) (732)
Expenses not deductible for taxation 24,296 5,690
Tax losses not recognised 3,131 2,201
Tax losses utilised from previous period (33) (137)
Under provision of taxation 332 –

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate 3,217 6,229

At 31 December 2004, the Group has no significant potential deferred tax liabilities (2003: Nil) for which
provision has not been made. There is no significant unrecognised deferred tax liability (2003: Nil) for taxes that
would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates as the Group
has no liability to additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$70,081,000 (2003: HK$52,378,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of these loses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time.
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9. DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS

On 19 March 2004, the Company entered into a conditional agreement (and supplemented by a further agreement
dated 29 March 2004) to dispose of its entire interest in the issued share capital of an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, All Paramount International Limited (“All Paramount”), to an independent third party at a consideration
of approximately HK$45 million (the “Disposal”). The principal asset of All Paramount was its 49% equity
interest in Dong Feng Shao Xing Wine Co. Ltd. Included in All Paramount, there were also other borrowings of
HK$80 million from an independent third party (see note 24 to the financial statements). A total amount of
HK$62.2 million was utilised by a subsidiary of the Group for the granting of advances to two independent third
parties, details of which are set out in note 21 to the financial statements. Details of the Disposal were set out in
the Company’s circular despatched to shareholders of the Company dated 15 April 2004. The Disposal resulted in
the discontinuance of the manufacturing and trading of Shao Xing wine business, which formed a major part of
the Group’s manufacturing and trading of Shao Xing wine business segment in 2003. The Disposal was completed
on 2 April 2004.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the Disposal is also consistent with the Group’s new investment
strategy to diversity its business and to minimise the risk of the Group’s reliance on a single business. The
Disposal enables the Group to realise its investment in the manufacturing and trading of Shao Xing wine business
and to refocus the Group’s resources on expanding its newly acquired businesses which include skin and health
care business, trading of jewellery and steel and artwork design.

The turnover, other revenue, expenses and results of the manufacturing and trading of Shao Xing wine business
for the two years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

TURNOVER 2,475 195,456

Cost of sales (1,569) (125,410)

Gross profit 906 70,046

Other revenue – 746
Selling and distribution costs – (17,847)
Administrative expenses (1,088) (15,984)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts – (1,456)

(LOSS)/PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (182) 35,505

Finance costs – (12,072)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (182) 23,433

Taxation – (6,229)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS (182) 17,204

Minority interests – (11,430)

NET (LOSS)/PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS (182) 5,774

The carrying amounts of the total assets, liabilities and minority interests relating to the discontinuing operations
at 31 December are as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets – 444,080
Total liabilities – (292,665)
Minority interests – (107,453)

Net assets – 43,962
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10. NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2004 dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company amounted to HK$3,489,000 (2003: HK$37,319,000) (note 30(b)).

11. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders
of HK$50,682,000 (2003: HK$36,693,000) and the weighted average number of 10,565,957,570 ordinary shares
(2003: 4,080,935,888) in issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the rights issue completed during the year.

The diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2004 has not been shown as the exercise prices of the
outstanding share options of the Company were higher than the average market price of the Company’s shares
during the year and therefore the share options were not dilutive.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2003 has not been disclosed, because there was no
potential ordinary shares in existence during the year ended 31 December 2003.

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Machinery Furniture
Investment Land and and and Motor Wine Construction
Properties buildings equipment fixtures vehicles jugs in progress Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost or valuation:
1 January 2004 – 151,111 79,194 6,232 5,595 34,213 102 276,447
Additions 10,704 – 698 1,071 – – – 12,473
Acquisition of subsidiaries 74,299 – 11,769 5,373 900 – – 92,341
Disposals of subsidiaries – (150,564) (76,330) (2,930) (5,188) (34,213) (102) (269,327)
Disposals (22,392) – (3,676) (4,901) (570) – – (31,539)
Surplus arising on revaluation 10,909 – – – – – – 10,909
Exchange realignment – – (9) – (1) – – (10)

31 December 2004 73,520 547 11,646 4,845 736 – – 91,294

Analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost 260 547 11,646 4,845 736 – – 18,034
At 31 December 2004 valuation 73,260 – – – – – – 73,260

73,520 547 11,646 4,845 736 – – 91,294

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
1 January 2004 – 44,716 42,632 6,035 4,453 3,547 – 101,383
Provided during the year – – 1,014 1,428 166 – – 2,608
Acquisition of subsidiaries – – 5,909 2,248 447 – – 8,604
Disposals of subsidiaries – (44,169) (39,769) (2,733) (4,090) (3,547) – (94,308)
Disposals – – (2,928) (2,606) (395) – – (5,929)
Exchange realignment – – (9) – (1) – – (10)

31 December 2004 – 547 6,849 4,372 580 – – 12,348

Net book value:
31 December 2004 73,520 – 4,797 473 156 – – 78,946

31 December 2003 – 106,395 36,562 197 1,142 30,666 102 175,064
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The Group’s investment properties are all situated in Hong Kong and are all held under medium term leases.

The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment held under finance leases included in the total
amount of machinery and equipment at 31 December 2004, amounted HK$3,299,000 (2003: Nil).

Certain of the Group’s investment properties with a net book value of HK$55,260,000 as at 31 December 2004
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

Company

Furniture
and fixtures

HK$’000

Cost:
1 January 2004 –
Additions 8

31 December 2004 8

Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2004 –
Provided during the year 1

31 December 2004 1

Net book value:
31 December 2004 7

31 December 2003 –

13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group

Production
technology

and knowhow
HK$’000

Cost:
1 January 2004 27,206
Disposal of a subsidiary (27,206)

31 December 2004 –

Accumulated amortisation:
1 January 2004 13,603
Disposal of a subsidiary (13,603)

31 December 2004 –

Net book value:
31 December 2004 –

31 December 2003 13,603
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14. GOODWILL

The amounts of the goodwill capitalised as an asset arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries, are as follows:

Group

Goodwill
HK$’000

Cost:
1 January 2004 –
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 31(b)) 146,755

31 December 2004 146,755

Accumulated amortisation:
1 January 2004 –
Amortisation provided during the year 22,329

31 December 2004 22,329

Net book value:
31 December 2004 124,426

31 December 2003 –

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted shares, at cost 69,312 69,321
Due from subsidiaries 506,045 415,033

575,357 484,354
Provision for impairment (392,766) (396,831)

182,591 87,523

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered and attributable to

Name and operations paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
Direct Indirect

Firstone Corporate Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 – 100 Trading of wine and
ordinary shares other food products

Firstone Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands HK$67,349,601 100 – Investment holding
ordinary shares

Ostrindo Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1,000 – 100 Investment holding
ordinary shares

Super Access Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 – Investment holding
Hong Kong ordinary share

Preciseworth Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 – Securities trading
Hong Kong ordinary share

Sky Path Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 – 100 Investment holding
ordinary share

Glory Hero Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Property holding
ordinary shares

Fabulous Career Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Property holding
ordinary shares

Main Benefit Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Property holding
ordinary shares

Excel Harvest Corporation Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 – 100 Trading of jewellery
Limited ordinary shares

Excellent Venture Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Property investment
Limited ordinary shares

Dragon Mount Corporation Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Property investment
Limited ordinary shares

Profit Legend Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Property investment
ordinary shares

Profit Team Consultants Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$300 – 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong ordinary shares

Seventh Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1,520 – 100 Management and
ordinary shares support

Best Future Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$400 – 100 Investment holding
ordinary shares

Green House & Spa Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 – 100 Trading of beauty
ordinary shares products

Beckon B Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 – 100 Trading of beauty
ordinary shares products
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Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered and attributable to

Name and operations paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
Direct Indirect

Sengo Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Trading of beauty
ordinary shares products

Smart Symbol Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 100 Trading of beauty
ordinary shares products

Silver Dragon Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 – 80 Investment holding
ordinary shares

International Physique & Hong Kong HK$10 – 72 Beauty training
Aesthetic Education Limited ordinary shares

Everich International Group Hong Kong HK$10 – 72 General trading and
Limited ordinary shares property investment

Happy Smart Limited Hong Kong HK$10 – 72 Advertising and
ordinary shares public relations

Creative Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$10 – 72 General trading and
ordinary shares property investment

Daiwah Company Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 – 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong ordinary shares

Lei Pong Silkscreen & Hong Kong HK$10,000 – 100 Artwork production
Inkjet Printing Limited ordinary shares and graphic design

Screenyard 8 Colours Hong Kong HK$20,408 – 100 Artwork production
Production (HK) Limited ordinary shares and graphic design

Grafixpro Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 – 100 Artwork production
ordinary shares and graphic design

Right Choice Exhibition Hong Kong HK$10,000 – 100 Rental of exhibition
Display (HK) Limited ordinary shares display equipment

Jafoon Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 – 75 Trading of steel
ordinary shares

Full Land Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 75 Property investment
ordinary shares

Golden View Limited Hong Kong HK$2 – 75 Property investment
ordinary shares

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

During the year, the Company acquired equity interests in certain subsidiaries from respective vendors who have
agreed to pay certain multiples of guaranteed profits and other income (“Profit Multiples”) for the businesses they
sold to the Company. The Company has consolidated the results of these subsidiaries from the respective dates
the control of the subsidiaries was transferred to the Company. As of 31 December 2004, the Company has not yet
reflected the Profit Multiples in the financial statements. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
agreement would be reached with the respective vendors in the year ending 31 December 2005. Because the
Profit Multiples have taken into account the future profitability of the acquired businesses when the respective
agreement were signed, the Company would apply the Profit Multiples, if any, to reduce the investment costs in
the Company’s financial statements (and the amount of goodwill on consolidation) relating to the businesses so
acquired, when all the conditions (including the final amount and the collectability of the Profit Multiples are
established, etc.) for recording the Profit Multiples are met.
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16. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Share of net assets – –
Amounts due from associates 52,070 52,070
Provision against amounts due from associates (52,070) (52,070)

– –

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the directors, they will not be repayable within twelve months from the balance sheet date and accordingly, the
amounts have been classified as non-current assets.

Particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity

Business registration attributable Principal
Name structure and operations to the Group activities

Centra Intertraco Limited Corporate Hong Kong 35 Investment
holding

Shenzhen Capstone Food Corporate PRC/Mainland 24.5 Dormant
and Beverage Co., Ltd. China

Shaoguan Quan Tong Corporate PRC/Mainland 25 Dormant
Industrial Ltd. China

17. LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Group and Company
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted equity investment, at cost 156,514 156,514
Due from investee 518 518
Provision for impairment (156,232) (156,232)

800 800

The long term investment represents an unlisted investment (11.14% equity interest) in a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands which owns a group of subsidiaries, the operations of which were terminated in prior
years.

18. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted equity securities 5,536 –
Securities listed in Hong Kong 3,731 –

9,267 –

Market value of listed securities 3,949 –
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19. INVENTORIES

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Raw materials – 9,415
Work in progress – 29,893
Finished goods 8,485 121,610

8,485 160,918

At 31 December 2004, no inventory items were carried at net realisable value (2003: Nil).

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally for a period of 30 days, except for certain well-
established customers where the credit terms are extended to 120 days. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, and net of provisions,
is as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current to 3 months 5,210 8,779
3 to 6 months 82 2,799
Over 6 months 7,276 1,739

12,568 13,317

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES

Pursuant to a loan facility agreement dated 13 August 2003 entered into between the Group and an independent
third party (“Company A”), the Group agreed to grant a maximum facility of HK$35 million to Company A under
which the amount advanced bore interest at a rate of 1% over the best lending rate quoted by the Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) per annum. The outstanding loan amount was repayable six
months from the date of the loan agreement, being 12 February 2004. The loan was secured by a charge over all
the issued shares and shareholders’ loan of a wholly-owned subsidiary held by Company A, which is engaged in
Japanese restaurant operations in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2003, HK$30 million had been advanced by the
Group to Company A. During the year, the outstanding balance was fully settled by Company A.

Pursuant to a loan facility agreement dated 23 September 2003 entered into between the Group and independent
third party (“Company B”), the Group agreed to grant a maximum facility of HK$35 million to Company B under
which the amount advanced bore interest at a rate of 1% over the best lending rate quoted by HSBC per annum.
The outstanding loan amount was repayable six months from the date of the loan agreement, being 22 March
2004. The loan was secured by a charge over all the issued shares and shareholders’ loan of a subsidiary of
Company B, which is engaged in apparel trading with an extensive distribution network in Hong Kong, Macau
and Mainland China. At 31 December 2003, HK$32.2 million had been advanced by the Group to Company B.
During the year, the outstanding balance was fully settled by Company B.

Pursuant to loan agreements dated 11 November 2003 and 23 December 2003 entered into between the Group and
an independent third party (“Company C”), the Group advanced an amount of HK$500,000 each time to Company
C which bears interest at a rate of 5% per annum. The outstanding loan amount is repayable six months from the
date of the loan agreements, being 11 May 2004 and 22 June 2004. The loan is secured by a personal guarantee of
the shareholder of Company C. At 31 December 2003, HK$1 million had been advanced by the Group to
Company C. During the year, Company C became a subsidiary of the Group immediately following the acquisition
of the beauty and health care business.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Group

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash and bank balances 40,088 134,263
Time deposits, which are not restricted as to use 426 –

40,514 134,263

23. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of trade payables as at the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Current to 3 months 8,888 18,942
3 to 6 months 714 322
Over 6 months 6,824 2,629

16,426 21,893

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Bank overdrafts, secured 11,208 –
Bank borrowings, secured 49,958 138,679
Trust receipt loans, secured 21,912 –
Other borrowings, secured 1,237 80,000
Other borrowings, unsecured 412 –

84,727 218,679

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand 41,846 218,679
In the second year 2,750 –
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 7,982 –
Beyond five years 32,149 –

84,727 218,679
Portion classified as current liabilities (41,846) (218,679)

Long term portion 42,881 –

At 31 December 2004, the Group’s secured interest bearing bank and other borrowings were secured by the
following:

(a) first legal charges over certain investment properties of the Group with an aggregate net book value of
HK$55,260,000 (2003: Nil);

(b) the pledge of certain time deposits and investment securities of the Group amounting to HK$3,009,000
(2003: HK$ Nil) and HK$3,198,000 (2003: Nil) respectively;

(c) first legal charges over properties of certain independent third parties;

(d) corporate guarantee executed by certain independent third parties; and

(e) personal guarantee executed by certain directors of the Group’s subsidiaries.
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25. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its machinery and equipment for its operations. These leases are classified as finance
leases and have remaining lease terms ranging from one to two years.

At 31 December 2004, the total future minimum lease payments under finance leases and their present values
were as follows:

Group
Minimum Minimum Present value Present value

lease lease of minimum of minimum
payments payments lease lease

2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Amounts payable:
Within one year 1,929 – 1,836 –
In the second year 320 – 313 –

Total minimum
finance lease payments 2,249 – 2,149 –

Future finance charges (100) –

Total net finance lease payables 2,149 –
Portion classified as

current liabilities (1,836) –

Long term portion 313 –

26. DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a minority shareholder was unsecured, bears interest at the prevailing market interest rate as
quoted by a bank in Mainland China, which approximates to 5.04% per annum and has no fixed terms of
repayment. During the year, the outstanding balance was fully settled with the minority shareholder.

27. DEFERRED TAXATION
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Group

Excess of allowable tax
losses over accelerated

tax depreciation
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

1 January – –
Acquisition of subsidiaries 452 –
Deferred tax charged to the profit and loss account

during the year (note 8) 244 –

31 December 696 –
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Deferred tax liabilities

Group

Revaluation of
investment properties

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

1 January – –
Deferred tax debited to investment property revaluation reserve

during the year 739 –

31 December 739 –

28. SHARE CAPITAL

Company
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Authorised:
25,000,000,000 (2003: 25,000,000,000) ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each 250,000 250,000

50 (2003: 50) convertible preference shares
of HK$1,000,000 each 50,000 50,000

Issued and fully paid:
13,001,818,226 (2003: 7,986,818,226) ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each 130,018 79,868

(a) On 12 January 2004 and 21 April 2004, 720,000,000 and 900,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at the
agreed prices of HK$0.012 and HK$0.02 per share, respectively, and recorded at prices of HK$0.018 and
HK$0.015 per share, respectively, (which were the closing prices quoted on the Stock Exchange at the
date of completion of acquisitions) as part of the consideration for the acquisition of subsidiaries. On 9
August 2004, another 455,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at HK$0.011 per share as part of the
consolidation for the acquisition of subsidiaries.

(b) On 11 February 2004 and 13 February 2004, 85,000,000 and 170,000,000 ordinary shares, respectively,
were issued at the price of HK$0.0198 per share and on 12 May 2004, 465,000,000 ordinary shares were
issued at the price of HK$0.0144 per share for a total cash consideration of HK$11,745,000 upon the
exercise of share options granted to the staff, directors of the Company and business partners of the
Group.

(c) Pursuant to a placing agreement and a subscription agreement both dated 6 July 2004, Ample Glory
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, agreed to place 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company through a placing agent to independent investors at HK$0.011 per share and, at the same time,
to subscribe for 1,000,000,000 new shares in the Company at the same price (the “Top-up Placement”).
The net proceeds from the subscription after deducting expenses was approximately HK$10.64 million.
The Top-up Placement was completed on 20 July 2004.

(d) On 29 November 2004, Ample Glory Limited had entered into a placing agreement and a subscription
agreement for the placing of 1,170,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the price of HK$0.015 per
share and the subscription of 1,170,000,000 new shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$0.015
per share (the Second Top-up Placement”). The net proceeds of the Second Top-up Placement of
approximately HK$17,100,000 were used for general working capital of the Group and as an investment
funding to the Group on possible future acquisition.

(e) On 30 December 2004, 50,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at the price of HK$0.0198 per share for a
total cash consideration of HK$990,000 upon the exercise of share options granted to a director of the
Company.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A previous share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 16 September 1992 and expired on 15 September
2002. On 28 January 2004, the shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme”). The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder
for their contribution to the Group and/or enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds an equity interest
(“Invested Entity”). Eligible participants of the New Scheme include mainly the directors, employees, suppliers
of goods or services, customers, shareholders, business partners and professional advisers of the Company or any
Invested Entity. The New Scheme became effective on 29 January 2004 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
New Scheme is 870,681,822 shares, being an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company at 28 January 2004, being the date of the shareholders of the Company approving the New Scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable under the share options to each eligible participant in the New Scheme
within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-
month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share option may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and the period commences on the date of which the offer is made and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share options subject to any provisions of
the New Scheme determining the rights of the grantees.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the
average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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The following share options were outstanding under the New Scheme during the year:

Price of
Number of share options Company’s shares***

Name of At 1 Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled At 31 Date of Exercise Exercise At grant At exercise
category of January during during during during December grant of period of price of date of date of
participant 2004 the year the year the year the year 2004 share options* share options share options** options options

HK$ HK$ HK$

Directors
Lee Tiong Hock – 85,000,000 (85,000,000) – – – 10-Feb-04 10-Feb-04 to 0.0198 0.0200 0.0200

9-Feb-05

Yu Won Kong, – 50,000,000 (50,000,000) – – – 13-Feb-04 13-Feb-04 to 0.0198 0.0200 0.0490
Dennis 12-Feb-05

Other employees

In aggregate – 70,000,000 – – – 70,000,000 11-Feb-04 11-Feb-04 to 0.0198 0.0200 –
10-Feb-05

– 340,000,000 (340,000,000) – – – 12-May-04 12-May-04 to 0.0144 0.0130 0.0130
11-May-05

– 410,000,000 (340,000,000) – – 70,000,000

Others

In aggregate – 115,000,000 (85,000,000) – – 30,000,000 11-Feb-04 11-Feb-04 to 0.0198 0.0200 –
10-Feb-05

– 85,000,000 (85,000,000) – – – 12-Feb-04 12-Feb-04 to 0.0198 0.0200 0.0200
11-Feb-05

– 125,000,000 (125,000,000) – – – 12-May-04 12-May-04 to 0.0144 0.0130 0.0130
11-May-05

– 325,000,000 (295,000,000) – – 30,000,000

– 870,000,000 (770,000,000) – – 100,000,000

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the commencement of the
exercise period.

** The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

*** The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options. The
price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the exercise of the share options is the weighted
average of the Stock Exchange closing prices over all of the exercises of options within the disclosure
line.

The 770,000,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the issue of 770,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company and new share capital of HK$7,700,000 and share premium of HK$5,045,000 (before issue expenses).

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 100,000,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme (which
represented approximately 0.77% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date). The exercise in full of the
remaining share options would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 100,000,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of HK$1,000,000 and share premium of
HK$980,000 (before issue expenses).
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30. RESERVES

(a) Group

Investment

Share PRC property

premium Translation statutory Capital Contributed revaluation Accumulated

account reserve reserves* reserve surplus reserve losses Total

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

1 January 2003:

As previously reported 542,584 3,413 11,159 31 191,389 – (617,545) 131,031

Prior year adjustment – – – – – – (11,088) (11,088)

As restated 542,584 3,413 11,159 31 191,389 – (628,633) 119,943

Share issue expenses (1,650) – – – – – – (1,650)

Exchange difference

arising on translation

of overseas subsidiaries – (413) – – – – – (413)

Appropriations to reserve

funds by PRC subsidiaries – – 834 – – – (834) –

Net loss for the year – – – – – – (36,693) (36,693)

31 December 2003 540,934 3,000 11,993 31 191,389 – (666,160) 81,187

Issue of shares 22,326 – – – – – – 22,326

Share issue expenses (717) – – – – – – (717)

Released upon disposal of

subsidiaries – (6,238) (11,083) – – – 11,083 (6,238)

Surplus on revaluation – – – – – 3,484 – 3,484

Net loss for the year – – – – – – (50,682) (50,682)

31 December 2004 562,543 (3,238) 910 31 191,389 3,484 (705,759) 49,360

Reserves retained by:

Company and subsidiaries 562,543 173 910 31 191,389 3,484 (692,133) 66,397

Associates – (3,411) – – – – (13,626) (17,037)

31 December 2004 562,543 (3,238) 910 31 191,389 3,484 (705,759) 49,360

Company and subsidiaries 540,934 6,411 11,993 31 191,389 – (652,534) 98,224

Associates – (3,411) – – – – (13,626) (17,037)

31 December 2003 540,934 3,000 11,993 31 191,389 – (666,160) 81,187

* The balance included the entire share of net profit of associates, which were disposed of during
the year.
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(b) Company

Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

1 January 2003 542,584 192,083 (647,246) 87,421
Share issue expenses (1,650) – – (1,650)
Net loss for the year – – (37,319) (37,319)

31 December 2003 540,934 192,083 (684,565) 48,452
Issue of shares 22,326 – – 22,326
Share issue expenses (717) – – (717)
Net loss for the year – – (3,489) (3,489)

31 December 2004 562,543 192,083 (688,054) 66,572

* Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-Foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion
of the profits of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China has been appropriated to PRC
statutory reserves which are restricted as to use. The amount of the appropriation is at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

(i) the excess of the nominal value of the subsidiary’s shares acquired over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange at the time of the group re-organisation prior to the listing
of the Company’s shares in 1992; and

(ii) the credit arising from the reduction of the nominal value of the shares of the Company from
HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 each in a prior year.

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries at the date on which they were acquired by the Company over the nominal amount of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1992, less dividends paid out and an amount utilised on a redemption of shares
in a prior year, and the credit arising from the reduction in nominal value of HK$0.09 of the Company’s
shares detailed above.
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2003, wine jugs, which were previously classified as inventories
were transferred to property, plant and equipment as a result of the change in use from being held for
resale to being used for storage purpose. At date of transfer, the net carrying amount of the wine jugs
amounted to HK$34,213,000 (see note 12).

(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 83,739 –
Investment securities 3,198 –
Deferred taxation 452 –
Inventories 14,990 –
Trade receivables 77,243 –
Prepayments and other debtors 48,086 –
Tax refundable 180 –
Pledged bank deposits 10,733 –
Cash and cash equivalents 365 –
Trade payables (29,146) –
Accrued liabilities and other payables (7,481) –
Bank overdrafts (20,840) –
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (176,844) –
Finance lease payables (3,183) –
Minority interests (951) –

541 –

Goodwill on acquisition 146,755 –

147,296 –

Satisfied by:
Cash 116,286 –
Issue of shares 31,010 –

147,296 –

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries is
as follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash consideration (116,286) –
Cash and bank balances acquired 365 –
Bank overdrafts acquired (20,840) –

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries (136,761) –
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(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment 175,019 –
Intangible assets 13,247 –
Inventories 149,842 –
Trade receivables 29,036 –
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 92,515 –
Cash and cash equivalents 22,287 –
Trade payables (14,887) –
Accrued liabilities and other payables (63,550) –
Tax payable (5,958) –
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (235,463) –
Minority interests (113,829) –
Translation reserve (6,238) –

42,021 –
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 3,278 –

45,299 –

Satisfied by:
Cash 17,000 –
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 28,299 –

45,299 –

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as
follows:

2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000

Cash consideration 17,000 –
Cash and bank balances disposed of (22,287) –

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries (5,287) –

32. PENDING LITIGATIONS

Claims for payment of commission were brought by several dealers against certain subsidiaries of the Group in
respect of consignment services provided to the subsidiaries, together with interest and legal cost, etc. of
approximately HK$1,051,000 in aggregate. A full provision for HK$1,051,000 has been made in these financial
statements.

In the opinion of the directors, adequate provision has been made by the Group in respect of all the above claims
in the Group’s financial statements as at 31 December 2004.
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33. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements with leases negotiated for
terms of two years. The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to pay security deposits.

At 31 December 2004, the Group had total future minimum lease receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 63 –
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 57 –

120 –

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain properties under operating lease arrangements. These leases are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to two years.

At 31 December 2004, the Group and the Company had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 1,009 854 – –
In the second to fifth years, inclusive – 612 – –

1,009 1,466 – –

34. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33 above, the Group had the following commitments
at the balance sheet date:

Group
2004 2003

HK$’000 HK$’000
Capital commitments, contracted for acquisition

of machinery and equipment – 25,466

The Company had no significant commitments at the balance sheet date (2003: Nil).
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35. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a) On 20 January 2005, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “New Grand Vendor”) for the acquisition of 30% equity interest in the share
capital of New Grand Hotel Company Limited (“New Grand”) at a consideration of HK$50,000,000 (the
“New Grand Acquisition”). New Grand is a company incorporated in Macau with limited liability which,
as represented by the New Grand Vendor, has the right to use and occupy Grand Hotel for a period up to 2
April 2010 and, unless early terminated, such right will be automatically renewed for a further term under
the laws of Macau. However the exact length of the renewable term has not been determined between the
owner of Grand Hotel and New Grand. The consideration for the New Grand Acquisition was arrived at
after arm’s length negotiation between the Group and the New Grand Vendor and with reference to a
valuation of New Grand on a fair market value basis as at 31 December 2004 issued by an independent
professional qualified valuer.

The consideration shall be payable in full to the New Grand Vendor upon completion. A sum of
HK$1,000,000 was paid upon signing of the Agreement as refundable deposit for the acquisition and the
remaining balance of HK$49,000,000 will be satisfied either by way of cash or issuance and allotment of
the ordinary shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$0.05 each to the New Grand Vendor. The
New Grand Acquisition constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
The  circular containing detailed information of the New Grand Acquisition will be despatched upon the
completion of due diligence review.

(b) On 20 December 2004, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with independent third
parties (the “Pacific Glory Vendor”) for the acquisition of a 75% equity interest in Pacific Glory Holdings
Ltd. (the “Pacific Glory”) and 75% of shareholder’s loan due from Pacific Glory to the Pacific Glory
Vendor at a cash consideration of HK$2,700,000 (the “Pacific Glory Acquisition”). Pacific Glory is an
investment holding company and owns and operates through its subsidiaries, a restaurant in Tsim Sha
Tsui, Kowloon under the trade name of “Suishaya Japanese Restaurant”. The Pacific Glory Acquisition
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules and the details of which
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 10 January 2005. The Pacific Glory Acquisition was completed
on 25 April 2005.

(c) During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of an investment property situated in Hong Kong for a cash consideration HK$15,250,000. This
transaction was completed on 6 January 2005.

(d) On 25 April 2005, the Group entered into an agreement with an independent third party to acquire an
operation specialised in the production of upmarket ladies shoes in Mainland China at a consideration of
HK$1,360,000. The acquisition has yet to be completed.

36. IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“new HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2005.

The Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2004. The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on its results of operations and
financial position.

37. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 April 2005.
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D. INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE GROUP FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED
30TH JUNE 2005

Set out below is the unaudited financial statements of the Group for the six months ended 30th
June 2005 as extracted from the Company’s interim report 2005.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Six months ended 30 June
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(Restated)

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

TURNOVER 4 95,030 54,357
Cost of sales (91,112) (47,353)

Gross profit 3,918 7,004

Gain on disposal of investment properties 6,184 –
Dividend income 280 –
Rental income from investment properties 552 –
Other revenue 2,273 1,398
Selling and distribution expenses (183) (1,410)
Administrative expenses (16,983) (15,358)
Other operating expenses (3) (581)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 9 2,804 1,446
Valuation gain on investment properties 1,865 –
Impairment losses of goodwill arising from

acquisitions of subsidiaries (54,238) –
Amortisation of goodwill arising from

acquisitions of subsidiaries – (8,262)

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 4 & 5 (53,531) (15,763)
Finance costs (1,809) (1,723)
Share of results of associates  – 6,429

LOSS BEFORE TAX (55,340) (11,057)

Tax 6 (954) (282)

LOSS AFTER TAXATION (56,294) (11,339)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the parent (56,794) (11,358)
Minority interest (500) (19)

(56,294) (11,339)

LOSS PER SHARE 7
– Basic (0.43) cents (0.12) cents

– Diluted N/A N/A



– 64 –

APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

30 June 31 December
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(Restated)

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 10 42,031 78,946
Goodwill 68,362 124,426
Long term investment 800 800
Investment securities 5,760 9,267
Deferred taxation  – 696

116,953 214,135

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 25,066 8,485
Trade receivables 11 24,627 12,568
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 45,186 29,407
Pledged bank deposits 3,009 3,009
Cash and bank balances 47,818 40,514

145,706  93,983

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 12 36,675  16,426
Accrued liabilities and other payables 31,850  22,927
Tax payable 444  694
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

– due within one year 36,075  41,846
Finance lease payables 1,002  1,836
Due to minority shareholders 750 –

106,796  83,729

NET CURRENT ASSETS 38,910  10,254

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 155,863  224,389

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

– due after one year 29,811  42,881
Deferred tax liabilities 918  313
Finance lease payables 75  739

30,804  43,933

125,059  180,456

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 13 131,018  130,018
Reserves (7,537)  49,360

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 123,481  179,378
Minority interest 1,578  1,078

Total equity 125,059  180,456
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share PRC
Share Premium Translation Statutory Capital Contributed Revaluation Accumulated Minority

capital Account Reserve Reserves Reserve Surplus Reserve Losses interest Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

At 1 January 2004 79,868 540,934 3,000 11,993 31 191,389 – (666,160) – 161,055

Released upon disposal of

subsidiaries – – (6,238) (11,083) – – – 11,083  – (6,238)

Issued as consideration for

acquisitions of

subsidiaries 16,200 10,260 – – – – – – – 26,460

Exercise of share options 7,200 4,545 – – – – – – – 11,745

Surplus arising on revaluation 

of investment properties – – – – – – 5,500 – – 5,500

Net loss for the period – – – – – – – (11,358) – (11,358)

As 30 June 2004 103,268 555,739 (3,238) 910 31 191,389 5,500 (666,435) – 187,164

At 1 January 2005 130,018 562,543 (3,238) 910 31 191,389 3,484 (705,759) – 179,378

Adjustment (HKAS 1) – – – – – – – –  1,078  1,078

Adjustment (HKAS 40) – – – – – – (3,484) 3,484 – –

At 1 January 2005

(Restated) 130,018 562,543 (3,238) 910 31 191,389 – (702,275) 1,078 180,456

Released upon disposal of

subsidiaries – – (173) (910) – – – – – (1,083)

Exercise of share options 1,000 980 – – – – – – – 1,980

Minority interest movement – – – – – – – – 500  500

Net loss for the Period – – – – – – – (56,794) – (56,794)

At 30 June 2005 131,018 563,523 (3,411) – 31 191,389 – (759,069) 1,578 125,059
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Six months ended 30 June
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

NET CASH (OUTFLOW)/INFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (23,039) 75,704

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 48,268 (156,363)

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (16,080) (281)

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,149 (80,940)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 29,306 134,263

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD 38,455 53,323

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 47,818 78,382

Bank overdrafts (9,363) (25,059)

38,455 53,323
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NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” and other relevant HKASs and
Interpretations and the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The accounting policies used in the condensed financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 except for the new
adoption of HKFRSs and HKASs as disclosed in note 2 below. Due to the new adoption of such HKFRSs and
HKASs, certain comparative figures previously reported have been restated to comply with the new requirements.

2. IMPACT OF NEW HKFRSs AND INTERPRETATIONS

In the current Period, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new HKFRSs, HKASs and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA that are effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs has resulted in
a change in the presentation of the income statement, balance sheet and the statement of changes in equity. In
particular, the presentation of minority interests and share of tax of associates have been changed. The changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively. The adoption of the new HKFRSs, in particular the HKASs as set
out below, has resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting policies in the following areas that have an effect on
how the results for the current or prior accounting periods are prepared and presented:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
HKAS 40 Investment Property
HKAS Interpretation 21 Income Taxes – Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
HKFRS 2 Share – based Payment
HKFRS 3 Business Combination

(a) Presentation of Financial Statements

The adoption of HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests, which are now shown as
equity, and share of net after tax results of associates. These changes have been applied retrospectively.
(see Note 3 for financial impact)

(b) Amortisation of positive and negative goodwill

In prior periods:

• positive or negative goodwill which arose prior to 1 January 2001 was taken directly to reserves
at the time it arose, and was not recognised in the income statement until disposal of impairment
of the acquired business;

• positive goodwill which arose on or after 1 January 2001 was amortised on a straight line basis
over its useful life and was subject to impairment testing when there were indications of
impairment; and

• negative goodwill which arose on or after 1 January 2001 was amortised over the weighted
average useful life of the depreciable/amortisable non-monetary assets acquired, except to the
extent it related to identified expected future losses as at the date of acquisition. In such cases it
was recognised in the income statement as those expected losses were incurred.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in accordance with HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36, the group no longer
amortises positive goodwill. Such goodwill is tested annually for impairment, including in the year of its
initial recognition, as well as when there are indications of impairment. Impairment losses are recognised
when the carrying amount of the cash generating unit to which the goodwill has been allocated exceeds
its recoverable amount.
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Also with effect from 1 January 2005 and in accordance with HKFRS 3, if the fair value of the net assets
acquired in a business combination exceeds the consideration paid (i.e. an amount arises which would
have been known as negative goodwill under the previous accounting policy), the excess is recognised
immediately in the income statement as it arises.

The new policy in respect of positive goodwill has been applied prospectively in accordance with the
transitional arrangements under HKFRS 3. As a result, comparative amounts have not been restated, the
cumulative amount of amortisation as at 1 January 2005 has been offset against the cost of the goodwill
and no amortisation charge for goodwill has been recognised in the income statement for the six months
ended 30 June 2005.

The change in policy relating to negative goodwill had no effect on the interim financial report as there
was no negative goodwill deferred as at 31 December 2004.

(c) Investment Properties

In the current Period, the Group has, for the first time, applied HKAS 40 Investment Property.

The Group has elected to use the fair value model to account for its investment properties which requires
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties to be recognised directly in
the profit or loss for the period in which they arise. In previous periods, investment properties under the
predecessor Standard were measured at open market values, with revaluation surplus or deficits credited
or charged to investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance on this reserve was insufficient
to cover a revaluation decrease, in which case the excess of the revaluation decrease over the balance on
the investment property revaluation reserve was charged to the income statement. Where a decrease had
previously been charged to the income statement and revaluation subsequently arose, that increase was
credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously charged. The Group has applied
the relevant transitional provisions in HKAS 40 and elected to apply HKAS 40 from 1 January 2005
onwards. The amount held in investment property revaluation reserve at 1 January 2005 has been transferred
to the Group’s accumulated losses. Gains on change in fair value of investment properties held by the
Group and the associates were recognised in the income statement during the period (see Note 3 for the
financial impact).

(d) Deferred Taxes related to Investment Properties

In previous periods, deferred tax consequences in respect of revalued investment properties were assessed
on the basis of the tax consequence that would follow from recovery of the carrying amount of the
properties through sale in accordance with the predecessor Interpretation. In the current period, the Group
has applied HKAS Interpretation 21 Income Taxes – Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
which removes the presumption that the carrying amount of investment properties are to be recovered
through sale. Therefore, the deferred tax consequences of the investment properties are now assessed on
the basis that reflect the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects
to recover the property at each balance sheet date. In the absence of any specific transitional provisions in
HKAS Interpretation 21, this change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively.

(e) Share Option Scheme

In prior years, no amounts were recognised when employees (which term includes directors) were granted
share options over shares in the company. If the employees chose to exercise the options, the nominal
amount of share capital and share premium were credited only to the extent of the option’s exercise price
receivable.

With effect from 1 January 2005, in order to comply with HKFRS 2, the Group recognises the fair value
of such share options as an expense in the income statement, or as an asset, if the cost qualifies for
recognition as an asset under the Group’s accounting policies. A corresponding increase is recognised in a
capital reserve with equity.

Where the employees are required to meet vesting conditions before they become entitled to the options,
the Group recognises the fair value of the options granted over the vesting period. Otherwise, the Group
recognises the fair value in the period in which the options are granted.

If an employee chooses to exercise options, the related capital reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price. If the options lapse unexercised the related capital
reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.

However, the adoption of the HKFRS has no material effect on the results for current nor prior accounting
periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment is required.
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3. SUMMARY OF THE EFFECTS OF THE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The effects of the changes in accounting policies described in Note 2 above on the results for the current and
prior period are as follows:

Analysis of increase/(decrease) in profit for the Period by line items presented according to their function.

(a) Income statement items

(Note 2a) (Note 2b) (Note 2c)
HKAS 1 HKAS 36 HKAS 40 Total Effect
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

For the six months ended 30 June 2005
(Unaudited)

Impairment losses of goodwill arising from
acquisitions of subsidiaries – (54,238) – (54,238)

Valuation gain on investment properties – – 1,865 1,865

Increase/(decrease) in net profit
for the Period – (54,238) 1,865 (52,373)

For the six months ended 30 June 2004
(Unaudited)

Decrease in share of results of associates (2,600) – – (2,600)

Decrease in income tax expenses 2,600 – – 2,600

Decrease in net profit for the period – – – –
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The cumulative effects of the application of the new HKFRSs as at 31 December 2004 and 1 January 2005 are
summarised as below:

(b) Balance sheet items

Retrospective Adjusted on
adjustment 1st January 2005

As at 31st

December 2004 As at 31st As at 1st

(Originally (Note 2a) December 2004 (Note 2c) January 2005

stated) HKAS 1 (Restated) HKAS 40 (Restated)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment properties 73,520 – 73,520 – 73,520

Deferred tax liabilities (42) – (42) – (42)

Other net assets 106,978 – 106,978 – 106,978

Total assets and liabilities 180,456 – 180,456 – 180,456

Minority interests (1,078) 1,078 – – –

179,378 1,078 180,456 – 180,456

Share capital 130,018 – 130,018 – 130,018

Share premium 562,543 – 562,543 – 562,543

Accumulated profits/(losses) (705,759) – (705,759) 3,484 (702,275)

Investment property

revaluation reserve 3,484 – 3,484 (3,484) –

Other reserves 189,092 – 189,092 – 189,092

Equity holders of the parent 179,378 – 179,378 – 179,378

Minority interests – 1,078 1,078 – 1,078

Total equity 179,378 1,078 180,456 – 180,456
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s business segments is as follows:

Segment turnover Segment results
Six months ended 30 June Six months ended 30 June

2005 2004 2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations
Property investment – – 6,375 –
Skin and health care 156 6,292 (21,332) (9,988)
Trading of jewellery 3,652 16,646 (10,571) (771)
Trading of steel 86,597 15,425 1,585 181
Trading of wine 967 3,580 (405) (286)
Artwork design 1,092 – (12,767) –
Trading of other products 28 12,414 (10,702) (684)
Japanese restaurant 2,538 – 201 –

95,030 54,357 (47,616) (11,548)

Unallocated income 3,360 2,363
Unallocated expenses (9,275) (6,578)

Loss from operating activities (53,531) (15,763)

5. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group’s loss from operating activities was determined after charging/(crediting):

Six months ended 30 June
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

Depreciation 1,223 878
(Decrease)/Increase in provision for bad and doubtful debts (713) 581

6. TAX

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the Period.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Six months ended 30 June
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

Profits tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax (64) 281
Deferred taxation 1,018 1

954 282

Share of tax attributable to associates
Hong Kong – 47
Elsewhere – 2,553

– 2,600

954 2,882
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7. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share are based on the unaudited net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders of HK$56,794,000 (2004:HK$11,358,000) and the weighted average number of 13,098,503,309
(2004: 9,336,213,830) ordinary shares in issue during the Period, as adjusted to reflect the exercise of share
options.

No diluted loss per share for the Period ended 30 June 2005 has been presented because there is no outstanding
share option as at 30 June 2005.

Diluted loss per share for the period ended 30 June 2004 has not been shown because the share options outstanding
during the period had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for the period.

8. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Period, the Group acquired 75% of the issued share capital of Pacific Glory Limited (“Pacific Glory”).

The following summarises the effects of the acquisitions:–

HK$’000

Net assets acquired 2,251
Goodwill arising on acquisitions 449

Consideration 2,700

An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries is
as follows:

HK$’000

Cash consideration (2,700)
Cash and bank balances acquired 2,502

(198)
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9. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The results of the subsidiaries for the period from 1 January 2005 to the dates of disposal, which had been
included in the Group’s results for the Period, were as follows:–

HK$’000

Turnover –
Other revenue 196
Operating costs (333)
Finance costs (12)

Profit before tax (149)
Taxation (199)

Profit for the Period (348)

The net assets of subsidiaries at the dates of disposal were as follows:

HK$’000

Net assets disposed of 5,085
PRC statutory reserve realised (910)
Translation reserve realised (173)

4,002

Gain on disposal 2,804

Consideration 6,806

An analysis of the net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as
follows:

HK$’000

Cash consideration 6,806
Cash and bank balance disposed off (4)

6,802
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10. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The movements in investment properties and property, plant and equipment during the Period were summarised as
follows:

Investment Property, plant
properties and equipment

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

Net book value as at 1 January 2005 73,520 5,426
Additions – 4
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries – 1,182
Valuation gain on investment properties 2,260 –
Disposal (32,030) (3)
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries (7,100) (5)
Depreciation – (1,223)

Net book value as at 30 June 2005 36,650 5,381

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June 2005 by an independent firm of surveyors, Dudley Surveyors
Limited, on an open market value basis.

11. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trading terms with customers are largely on credit and credit periods range from 30 days to 150 days. Overdue
balances are regularly reviewed by senior management.

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, net of provisions, at the balance sheet date based on the
invoice date, which is when the goods are delivered and services are rendered.

30 June 31 December
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

Current to 3 months 508 5,210
3 to 6 months 9,519 82
Over 6 months 14,600 7,276

24,627 12,568

12. TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet date based on the date of the goods
purchased and services rendered.

30 June 31 December
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

Current to 3 months 21,953 8,888
3 to 6 months 5,267 714
Over 6 months 9,455 6,824

36,675 16,426
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13. SHARE CAPITAL

30 June 31 December
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

Authorised:
25,000,000,000 (2004: 25,000,000,000)

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 250,000 250,000

50 (2004: 50) convertible preference
shares of HK$1,000,000 each 50,000 50,000

Issued and fully paid:
13,101,818,226 (2004: 13,001,818,226)

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 131,018 130,018

During the Period, the following movements in the Company’s share capital were recorded:

(a) On 7 January, 2005, 100,000,000 ordinary shares were issued at the price of HK$0.0198 per share for a
total cash consideration of HK$1,980,000 upon the exercise of share options granted to staff and business
partners of the Group.

A summary of the movements in the Company’s share capital is presented as follows:

Number of shares HK$’000

At 1 January 2005 13,001,818,226 130,018
Exercise of share options 100,000,000 1,000

At 30 June 2005 13,101,818,226 131,018

14. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share options to subscribe for shares in the Company having been granted and held by participants
under the share option scheme of the Company during the six months ended 30 June 2005 were as follows:

Number of share options Price of Company’s shares***

Exercised
As at during As at Date Exercise Exercise price At grant date At exercise date

Participant 1 January 2005  the Period 30 June 2005 of grant* period per share**  of options of options

Employees 70,000,000 (70,000,000) – 11 February 2004 11 February 2004 0.0198 0.0200 0.0770
to 10 February 2005

Others 30,000,000 (30,000,000) – 11 February 2004 11 February 2004 0.0198 0.0200 0.0770
to 10 February 2005

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant until the commencement of the
exercise period.

** The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
the other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

*** The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options. The
price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date of the exercise of the share options is the weighted
average of the Stock Exchange closing prices over all of the exercises of options within the disclosure
line.
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15. PENDING LITIGATIONS

As at the balance sheet date, there were claims for payments of printing charges, finance lease payments, rental
payments and commission with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$1,847,000 brought by various parties
against certain subsidiaries of the Group. In the opinion of the Directors, adequate provision had been made by
the Group in respect of all the above claims in the Group’s financial statements.

16. LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2005, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows

30 June 31 December
2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)
HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 493 1,009
In the second to fifth years, inclusive – –

493 1,009

17. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 19 July 2005, the Group entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of an investment property situated in Hong Kong for a cash consideration HK$6,880,000. A
formal agreement was subsequently entered into between the parties on 29 July 2005.

18. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in order to conform with current Period’s presentation.

19. APPROVAL OF THE INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These condensed interim financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 21 September 2005.
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E. OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Material adverse change

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not aware of any material adverse

changes in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31st December 2004, the date to

which the latest published audited consolidated accounts of the Group were made up.

Working capital

The Directors are of the opinion that in the absence of unforeseen circumstances and after

taking into account the Enlarged Group’s internal resources, its existing banking facilities, the net

proceeds to be raised from the Open Offer as well as the available finance from bank for the

Acquisition, the Enlarged Group will, following completion of the Acquisition, have sufficient

working capital for at least twelve months from the date of this Prospectus.

Indebtedness

As at the close of business on 28th February 2006, being the latest practicable date for the

purpose of ascertaining information contained in this indebtedness statement prior to the printing

of this Prospectus, the Enlarged Group had outstanding borrowings of approximately HK$126

million, comprising the following:

(i) on a pro forma basis and as if the Acquisition is completed as of 28th February 2006,

borrowing of HK$100 million which is secured by the shares and shareholders loan

of State Empire Limited and its subsidiary;

(ii) secured bank overdrafts of approximately HK$0.9 million;

(iii) secured bank borrowings of approximately HK$16 million;

(iv) secured trust receipt of approximately HK$9 million; and

(v) finance lease obligation of approximately HK$0.1 million.

The bank borrowings, overdrafts and trust receipts referred to in (ii), (iii) and (iv) above are

secured by the investment properties, time deposits, investment fund, guarantees granted by directors

of certain subsidiaries and third party and properties owned by directors of certain subsidiaries.

Save as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Enlarged Group did not have

any mortgages, charges, debentures, loan capital, bank loans and overdrafts, debt securities or

other similar indebtedness, finance leases or hire purchase commitments, liabilities under acceptances

or acceptance credits, or any guarantees, or other material contingent liabilities outstanding at the

close of business on 28th February 2006.



– 78 –

APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

F. BUSINESS REVIEW AND TRADING PROSPECT OF THE GROUP

Skin and health care business

The year 2005 is a difficult year for the skin and health care business of the Group as the

business was bombarded by the increasing numbers of large cosmetic chain store outlets. The

management reviewed the business from time to time and active steps had been taken in 2005 to

trim down the retail operation in order to cut down the expenses. It is foreseeable that the skin and

health care business will continue to be difficult in 2006 for the Group as the competition of the

industry is very keen.

Trading of jewellery

The Excel Harvest group is principally engaged in the importing and wholesale of diamonds.

The turnover of the jewellery trading of the Excel Harvest group decreased in 2005 and recorded a

turnover of only HK$3.7 million for the six months ended 30th June 2005 (“Interim Period”)

(2004: HK$16.6 million) due to seasonal fluctuation and keen competition of the industry.

Property investment

In view of the current improved property market, the Group had realized some of its

investments at attractive prices in 2005. Apart from the Acquisition, the Group will continue to

seek for high quality investment property and at the same time closely watch the property market

for good opportunities to dispose its existing properties.

Trading of steel and other products

Turnover attributed to the sale of stainless steel for the Interim Period was approximately

HK$86.6 million (2004: HK$15.4 million) while net profit reached HK$1.6 million (2004:

HK$181,000). The improvement was mainly due to the sales strategy of small profits, quick

returns adopted by the management in view of the increased competition which cut down the unit

price of the products. However, in view of the decreasing profit margin and the increasing

competitiveness of the industry due to the increasing finance costs and the increasing costs of

sales, the Group will consider restructuring the business by trimming down the sales volume and/

or to dispose of the business when there is a good opportunity.

Restaurant operation

Pacific Glory Holdings Limited, which was acquired by the Group in April 2005 and operated

a Japanese restaurant, had a turnover of approximately HK$2.5 million and net profit of HK$201,000

for the Interim Period. The Group will continue to dedicate resources to finance the operation and

to seek opportunities to improve the competitiveness of the business so as to cope with the ever-

changing tastes of the market.
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Artwork design

The advertising and artwork design business of the Group was restructured and scaled down
in 2005 as a result of a change of the key personnel of the management of the Daiwah Company
Limited and its subsidiaries. The Directors consider that advertising business in Hong Kong is at
keen competition. The Group may consider restructuring of the business in 2006 in order to
minimize the loss of the Group attributable to the Daiwah Group.

Prospects

In October 2005, the Group has set up a new line for its trading business namely the
wholesale of quality glass-eel which is of higher profit margin and which requires less capital
outlay. The Directors are optimistic to the future performance of the Group in light of the new eel
trading business and the Acquisition. The new eel trading business is to take advantage from the
recent “Malachite Green” incident which affected the prospect of the industry but resulted in low
setting up costs for the business. The Group will source unaffected glass-eel from Europe. Overseas
demand for eel products is still high and therefore the Group expects that the new business will
provide a stable income and profits to the Group. The Group had reviewed its business in 2005 and
in a plan to trim and restructure or dispose unsatisfactory operations in 2006. Other than restructuring
its existing business, the Group will devote more of its resources to the abovesaid eel trading
business.

On 28th December 2005, the Company announced the Acquisition of which Lion Castle
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement to acquire the entire interests in State Empire Limited at a consideration of
approximately HK$101 million. State Empire Limited is an investment holding company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and has not carried on any business since incorporation
except as the investment holding company of Harbour Wealth Investment Company Limited.
Harbour Wealth Investment Company Limited is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong of which the only major asset is its entire interest in Right Emperor Commercial
Building. Right Emperor Commercial Building is a 24-storey commercial building situated in
Central, Hong Kong with a total gross floor area of approximately 41,950 sq. ft. and is available
for use as offices and shops rental since 1991. The Acquisition was approved by the Shareholders
at a special general meeting of the Company on 27th February 2006. The consideration of the
Acquisition will be settled by cash of the Group of approximately HK$31 million and the balance
will be financed by mortgage loan from banks or financial institutions and shareholder’s loan (if
necessary). However, if the Open Offer is completed, approximately HK$25 million of the proceeds
of the Open Offer will be used for settlement of the consideration instead of bank loans. There will
be no variation as to the remuneration payable to and benefits in kind receivable by the directors
of State Empire Limited and its subsidiary in consequence of the Acquisition.

The Group believes that the Acquisition will be able to bring about a stable rental income
for the Group and to improve the quality of the asset portfolio of the Group. As a long term
investment and in view of the potential increase in the occupancy rate and the value of the Right
Emperor Commercial Building, the Directors consider that the Acquisition will bring about positive
effect to the Group (namely the increase in turnover and total asset value of the Group). The Open
Offer will enable the Group to keep its gearing at a low level as the proceeds will be used to
finance the Acquisition. As such, the Directors believe that the Group will benefit from the
Acquisition and the Open Offer in the long run.
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A. STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED NET TANGIBLE ASSETS
OF THE GROUP

The unaudited pro forma financial information prepared in accordance with rule 4.29 of the Listing

Rules is set out below for the purpose of illustrating the effect of the Open Offer as if it had taken place

on 30 June 2005. This statement has been prepared for illustrative purposes only, and because of its

nature, it may not give a true picture of the financial position of the Group upon the completion of the

Open Offer.

Unaudited
consolidated Unaudited
net assets of Unaudited pro forma

the Group consolidated consolidated
attributable net tangible Estimated net tangible

to the equity assets of net assets
holders of the the Group proceeds of the Group

Company as at Less: as at from the after the
30 June 2005 Goodwill 30 June 2005 Open Offer Open Offer

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(Note 1)

123,481 (68,362) 55,119 26,300 81,419

Unaudited pro forma consolidated
net tangible assets per

New Share after the Open Offer
HK$

Based on the 4,080,545,466 New Shares

after the Open Offer (Note 2) 0.02

Notes:

1. The estimated net proceeds from the Open Offer are based on the price of HK$0.01 per Offer Share and
2,720,363,644 Offer Shares expected to be issued, after deducting the estimated expenses of HK$0.9 million
directly attributable to the Open Offer. The net cash inflow is HK$26.3 million.

2. Based on the 4,080,545,466 New Shares in issue after the Open Offer.
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B. LETTER ON THE UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED NET TANGIBLE ASSETS
OF THE GROUP

The following is the text of a letter received from CCIF CPA Limited, the reporting accountants, in

connection with the statement of unaudited pro forma consolidated net tangible assets of the Group:

30th March 2006

The Directors

Fortuna International Holdings Limited

Suite 3301, Tower 1

Lippo Centre

89 Queensway

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

We report on the unaudited pro forma consolidated net tangible assets of Fortuna International

Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out

in Section A of Appendix II to the prospectus dated 30th March 2006 (the “Prospectus”) in connection

with the open offer on the basis of two offer shares for every consolidated share held (the “Open Offer”),

which has been prepared, for illustrative purposes only, to provide information about how the Open Offer

might have affected the financial information presented as at 30th June 2005 and any future date.

Responsibilities

It is the sole responsibility of the directors of the Company to prepare the pro forma financial

information in accordance with rule 4.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by rule 4.29 of the Listing Rules, on the pro

forma financial information and to report our opinion to you. We do not accept any responsibility for any

reports previously given by us on any financial information used in the compilation of the pro forma

financial information beyond that owed to those to whom those reports were addressed by us at the dates

of their issue.
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Basis of opinion

We conducted our work with reference to the Statements of Investment Circular Reporting Standards

and Bulletin 1998/8 “Reporting on pro forma financial information pursuant to the listing rules” issued

by the Auditing Practices Board in the United Kingdom, where applicable. Our work, which involved no

independent examination of any of the underlying financial information, consisted primarily of comparing

the unadjusted financial information with the source documents, considering the evidence supporting the

adjustments and discussing the pro forma financial information with the directors of the Company.

Our work does not constitute an audit or a review in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on

Auditing or Hong Kong Standards on Review Engagements issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants and, accordingly, we do not express any such assurance on the pro forma financial

information.

The pro forma financial information has been prepared on the basis set out in Section A of

Appendix II to the Prospectus for illustrative purpose only and, because of its nature, it may not give an

indicative financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2005 or any future date.

Opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the unaudited pro forma financial information has been properly compiled on the basis

stated;

(b) such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Group; and

(c) the adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial information as

disclosed pursuant to rule 4.29(1) of the Listing Rules.

Yours faithfully,

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

Delores Teh

Practising Certificate Number P03207
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1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This Prospectus includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this Prospectus and confirm, having made
all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts the
omission of which would make any statement herein misleading.

2. DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation(s) (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies of the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, was as follows:

Long position in the Shares

Number of New
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held Percentage holdings

Yu Won Kong, Dennis Beneficial 5,000,000 0.37%

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporation(s) (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies in the Listing Rules to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the

Company, the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or were

deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of

Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more

of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general

meetings of any other member of the Group or had any option in respect of such capital:

Number of New Shares Percentage
interested or deemed to the issued

Nature of to be interested share capital of
Name Interest (long position) the Company

%

Ample Glory Limited Beneficial 197,077,191 (Note 2) 14.49 (Note 1)
Mr. Kwok Ying Leung

(“Mr. Kwok”) Corporate 197,077,191 (Note 2) 14.49 (Note 1)
Ms. Cheung Lai Sheung,

Winnie (“Ms. Cheung”) Family 197,077,191 (Note 2) 14.49 (Note 1)
Foundation Group Limited Corporate 77,991,062 (Note 3) 5.73 (Note 1)
Emperor Beneficial 1,025,363,644 (Note 5) 25.13 (Note 4)
3V Capital Beneficial 1,150,000,000 (Note 6) 28.18 (Note 4)
Kingston Beneficial 345,000,000 (Note 7) 8.45 (Note 4)
Byford Group Limited Beneficial 950,000,000 (Note 8) 23.28 (Note 4)

Notes:

1. The percentage holding is calculated based on the total existing issued share capital of 1,360,181,822 New
Shares.

2. The 197,077,191 New Shares are held by Ample Glory Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Kwok.
Accordingly, Mr. Kwok is deemed to be interested in the 197,077,191 New Shares. Ms. Cheung, is the spouse of
Mr. Kwok and therefore, Ms. Cheung is also deemed to be interested in the 197,077,191 New Shares by virtue of
the interest in such New Shares of her spouse. Both Mr. Kwok and Ms. Cheung do not hold any office in the
Group and they are not directors nor chief executive of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries or any
associates of any of them.

3. The 77,991,062 New Shares are beneficially owned by Gold Venture Corporation Limited. Gold Venture Corporation
Limited is 100% controlled by Value Place Investments Limited, which in turn 100% controlled by Foundation
Group Limited.

4. The percentage holding is calculated based on the number of shares interested or deemed to be interested over
4,080,545,466 New Shares of the Company, being the enlarged issued share capital of the Company assuming the
Open Offer has completed as at the Latest Practicable Date.

5. Emperor is interested in the 1,025,363,644 Offer Shares pursuant to its underwriting commitment under the
Underwriting Agreement. Emperor is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor International Holdings
Limited. Emperor International Holdings Limited is a company with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange.
71.73% of the shares of Emperor International Holdings Limited were registered in the name of Charron Holdings
Limited. The entire issued share capital of Charron Holdings Limited is held by Jumbo Wealth Limited on trust
for The A & A Unit Trust. The A & A Unit Trust is a unit trust under the Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY
Trust”), the trustee of which is GZ Trust Corporation. Mr. Albert Yeung, as founder of the AY Trust, is deemed to
be interested in the 1,025,363,644 Offer Shares under the underwriting commitment of Emperor.
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6. 3V Capital has conditionally agreed to underwrite 1,150,000,000 Offer Shares pursuant to the Underwriting
Agreement. As per notices made pursuant to s.324 of Part XV of the SFO (“Notices”) received by the Company,
3V Group Limited, Ong Guan Ten and Tang Chui Yee each is deemed to be interested in the 1,150,000,000 Offer
Shares underwritten by 3V Capital.

7. Kingston has conditionally agreed to underwrite 345,000,000 Offer Shares pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement.
As per Notices received, Chu Yuet Wah and Ma Siu Fong each is deemed to be interested in the 345,000,000
Offer Shares underwritten by Kingston.

8. Byford Group Limited has entered into a conditional sub-underwriting agreement with 3V Capital on 26th January
2006 to sub-underwrite 950,000,000 Offer Shares. Byford Group Limited is the beneficial owner of 14% interests
in Pacific Glory Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company and is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Wong
Ching Ping, Alex. Mr. Wong Ching Ping is the sole beneficial owner of Leopard Vision Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of Foundation Group Limited.

As per Notices received, Mr. Wong Ching Ping is deemed to be interested in the 950,000,000 Offer Shares under
the sub-underwriting commitment of Byford Group Limited. Ms. Gomes Maria Da Silva Rubi Angela is the
spouse of Mr. Wong Ching Ping, and therefore she is also deemed to be interested in the above Offer Shares.

Save as disclosed above so far as is known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, no

other person (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or short

positions in shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in

10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances

at general meetings of any other member of the Group or held any option in respect of such capital.

4. LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the members of the Enlarged Group was engaged in any

litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material importance was

known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against any member of the Enlarged Group.

5. SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any existing or proposed service

contracts with the Company or any member of the Enlarged Group (excluding contracts expiring or

which may be terminated by the Enlarged Group within one year without payment of compensation other

than statutory compensation).

6. DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND ASSETS

No contract or arrangement in which any Directors is materially interested and which is significant

in relation to the business of the Enlarged Group subsisted as at the Latest Practicable Date.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect interest in any

assets which have been, since 31st December 2004 (the date to which the latest published audited

consolidated accounts of the Company were made up), acquired or disposed of by or leased to any

member of the Enlarged Group, or are proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to any

member of the Enlarged Group.
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7. COMPETING INTERESTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors and their respective associates (as defined

in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business, which competed or may compete with the business of

the Group.

8. SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT OF THE COMPANY

Cheung Ka Lok, is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an

associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

9. EXPERT AND CONSENT

The following are the qualifications of the expert who has given opinion or advice, which is

contained in this Prospectus:

Name Qualifications

CCIF CPA Limited Certified Public Accountants

CCIF CPA Limited has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this

Prospectus with the inclusion of its letter and reference to its name in the forms and context in which

they appear.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, CCIF CPA Limited:

(a) was not interested, directly or indirectly, in any assets which have been acquired or disposed

of by or leased to any member of the Enlarged Group or are proposed to be acquired or

disposed of by or leased to any member of the Enlarged Group since 31st December 2004,

being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the Company were made

up; and

(b) did not have any shareholding interest in any member of the Group or any right (whether

legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for securities

in any member of the Group.

10. LEGAL EFFECT

The Prospectus, the Application Form and the Excess Application Form, and all applications for

the Offer Shares and excess Offer Shares contained in such documents, are governed by and shall be

construed in accordance with the laws of Hong Kong.
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11. BINDING EFFECT

This Prospectus shall have the effect, if an application is made in pursuance hereof, of rendering

all persons concerned bound by all the provisions (other than the penal provisions) of sections 44A and

44B of the Companies Ordinance so far as applicable.

12. DOCUMENT DELIVERED TO THE REGISTRARS OF COMPANIES

A copy of each of the Prospectus Documents, having attached thereto the written consent referred

to under the heading “Expert and Consent” in this Appendix, have been registered by the Registrar of

Companies in Hong Kong as required by Section 342C of the Companies Ordinance. A copy of each of

the Prospectus Documents have been filed with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda in accordance

with the Companies Act.

13. DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tak Chung

Mr. Wong, aged 45, has extensive experience in the investment services sector and in

corporate restructuring, investment strategy and business development. Mr. Wong has been engaged

as consultant for the business development of listed companies in Hong Kong as well as advisory

board member for companies abroad. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor degree in Science and a Master

degree in Business Administration. He has been a visiting lecturer for various universities and

distinguished speaker for government and industry conferences. He is a Fellow of the Institute of

Commercial Management in the United Kingdom. He has also been admitted to the International

Who’s Who of Professional since 2001.

Mr. Kwok Ying Chuen

Mr. Kwok, aged 59, has extensive experience in food and beverage industry, media and

investment field in Hong Kong and the Greater China Region. He was previously a director of a

number of Hong Kong listed companies. He joined the Group in September 2004.

Mr. Yu Won Kong, Dennis

Mr. Yu, aged 56, holds a Bachelor Degree in Motion Picture and Television from the

University of California Los Angeles, United States of America. He has extensive experience in

the financing of film production and strategic development of film entertainment business. Apart

from film business, he has over 10 years’ experience in financial investment field and was an

executive director of an Australian, NASDAQ and Frankfurt listed company and an executive

director of a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in November 2003.
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Independent Non Executive Directors

Mr. Tso Hon Sai, Bosco

Mr. Tso, aged 41, is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong since 1990. He is a partner of
Bosco Tso & Partners. He graduated from King’s College London in the United Kingdom in 1987.
He joined the Group in July 2003.

Mr. Kwok Chi Sun, Vincent

Mr. Kwok, aged 43, is a partner of Vincent Kwok & Co., Certified Public Accountants. He
is also an independent non-executive director of the following listed companies in Hong Kong,
namely Shun Ho Resources Holdings Limited, Shun Ho Technology Holdings Limited, Magnificent
Estates Limited, KanHan Technologies Group Limited and IA International Holdings Limited. He
joined the Group in July 2003.

Mr. Cheng Wing Keung, Raymond

Mr. Cheng, aged 46, a solicitor practising in Hong Kong, has over 20 years of experience in
corporate, company secretarial and listing affairs. He is an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in UK and The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries in Hong Kong. He holds a degree in laws in the University of London and a Master
Degree in Business Administration in the University of Strathclyde, Scotland. At present, he is an
independent non-executive director in two listed companies in Hong Kong, namely China Investment
Fund Company Limited and Skyfame Realty (Holdings) Limited. He joined the Group in September
2004.

Company Secretary

Cheung Ka Lok

Mr. Cheung, aged 38, is an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

14. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts in the ordinary course of business) have been entered
into by the members of the Group within the two years immediately preceding the date of this Prospectus:

(a) an agreement dated 29th March 2004 made between Ostrindo Holdings Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company as purchaser and Mr. Sze Kwok Shing as vendor in relation to the sale and
purchase of 80% interests in Silver Dragons Limited at a consideration of HK$14 million;

(b) an agreement dated 15th June 2004 entered into between Ostrindo Holdings Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser and Mr. Wong Yee Hoe and Mr.
Yeung Yat Keung, the vendors, for the sale and purchase of 100% interest in Daiwah
Company Limited at a consideration of HK$28.5 million and a subsequent termination
agreement dated 18th June 2004;
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(c) a placing agreement dated 6th July 2004 made between Ample Glory Limited as vendor and

Emperor Securities Limited as placing agent in relation to the placing of 1,000,000,000

Shares at HK$0.011 per Share;

(d) a subscription agreement dated 6th July 2004 made between Ample Glory Limited and the

Company for the subscription of 1,000,000,000 Shares at HK$0.011 per Share;

(e) an agreement dated 23rd July 2004 entered into between Ostrindo Holdings Limited and Mr.

Wong Yee Hoe and Mr. Yeung Yat Keung for the sale and purchase of 100% interest in

Daiwah Company Limited at a consideration of HK$28.5 million;

(f) an agreement dated 25th September 2004 entered into between Lion Castle Limited, a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as purchaser and Gain Wealth Investments Limited

as vendor in relation to the sale and purchase of 100% interest in Sky Path Limited at a

consideration of HK$16.8 million;

(g) a placing agreement dated 29th November 2004 made between Ample Glory Limited as

vendor and Kingston Securities Limited as placing agent in relation to the placing of

1,170,000,000 Shares at HK$0.015 per Share;

(h) a subscription agreement dated 29th November 2004 made between Ample Glory Limited

and the Company for the subscription of 1,170,000,000 Shares at HK$0.015 per Share;

(i) an agreement dated 20th December 2004 made between Lion Castle Limited, a subsidiary of

the Company as purchaser and Byford Group Limited as vendor in relation to the sale and

purchase of 75% interests in Pacific Glory Holdings Limited at a consideration of HK$2.7

million;

(j) an assignment dated 6th January 2005 made between Profit Legend Corporation Limited, a

subsidiary of the Company as vendor and an Independent Third Party in relation to the sale

and purchase of Room B, 7th Floor, Emperor Heights, 5 Cox’s Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

at a consideration of HK$15.25 million;

(k) an agreement dated 20th January 2005 made between Everacme Management Limited, a

subsidiary of the Company as purchaser and Ms. Lam Po Ying as vendor in relation to the

sale and purchase of 30% interests in New Grand Hotel Company Limited at a consideration

of HK$50 million;

(l) a provisional agreement dated 17th March 2005 made between Profit Legend Corporation

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company as vendor and an Independent Third Party as purchaser

in relation to the sale and purchase of Flat A, 21st Floor, Hoi Tien Mansion, Horizon

Garden, No. 15 Taikoo Wan Road, Taikoo Shing, Hong Kong at a consideration of HK$5.35

million and formal agreement made pursuant thereto;
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(m) an agreement dated 25th April 2005 and a cancellation agreement dated 28th June 2005

made between Lion Castle Limited, a subsidiary of the Company as purchaser and an

Independent Third Party as vendor in relation to the sale and purchase of the entire interests

in a company specialised in the production of shoes in Mainland China at a consideration of

HK$1.36 million;

(n) a provisional agreement dated 24th June 2005 made between Excellent Venture Enterprises

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company as vendor and Mr. Lam Sing Hung as purchaser in

relation to the sale and purchase of Flat B, 3/F, Block 2 and a car parking space No. 86 on

basement level 1, The Regalia, King’s Park Rise, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a

consideration of HK$7.8 million and formal agreement made pursuant thereto;

(o) a provisional agreement dated 24th June 2005 made between Everich International Group

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company as vendor and Mr. Ng Po Mo as purchaser in relation

to the sale and purchase of Duplex Flat D, 7/F and 8/F, Block 1, Parc Oasis, No. 43 Tat

Chee Avenue, Kowloon with car parking space No. 17 at a consideration of HK$8.8 million

and formal agreement made pursuant thereto;

(p) a provisional agreement dated 19th July 2005 made between Dragon Mount Corporation

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company as vendor and the two Independent Third Parties as

purchasers in relation to the sale and purchase of Room 1, 3 & 4/F, Block D and a car

parking space No. 50 on lower G/F, Shatin Heights, 8003 Tai Po Road, Shatin, New Territories

at a consideration of HK$6.88 million and formal agreement made pursuant thereto;

(q) a provisional agreement dated 16th November 2005 made between Team Profit International

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company as purchaser and Wilhelmina Shoes Factory Limited,

an Independent Third Party in relation to the sale and purchase of 8th Floor, Lok Kui

Industrial Building, Nos. 6-8 Hung To Road at a consideration of HK$4.1 million and

formal agreement dated 1st December 2005 made pursuant thereto;

(r) a provisional agreement dated 29th December 2005 made between Profit Legend Corporation

Limited, a subsidiary of the Company as vendor and an Independent Third Party as purchaser

in relation to the sale and purchase of Flat E, 11/F., Block 3, No. 9 Shung King Street,

Whampoa Garden, Kowloon at a consideration of HK$1.9 million and formal agreement

made pursuant thereto;

(s) an agreement dated 11th January 2006 made between Screenyard 8 Colours Production

(HK) Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company as vendor and an Independent Third Party as

purchaser in relation to the sale and purchase of printing machines and equipment at a

consideration of HK$1.05 million;

(t) an agreement dated 23rd December 2005 made between Lion Castle Limited, a subsidiary

of the Company as purchaser and Sincere Vantage Limited as vendor in relation to the

Acquisition; and

(u) the Underwriting Agreement.
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15. MISCELLANEOUS

– The business address of the Directors is at Suite 3301, Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway,

Hong Kong.

– The branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong is Secretaries Limited at 26th

Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

– The English text of this Prospectus prevail over the Chinese text.

16. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the principal place of business

of the Company at Suite 3301, Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong during normal

business hours on any weekday other than Sunday, Saturday and public holidays, up to and including

18th April 2006:

(a) the Memorandum of Association of the Company;

(b) the bye-laws of the Company;

(c) the material contracts referred to in paragraph headed “Material Contracts” to this Appendix;

(d) the annual reports of the Group for the two financial years ended 31st December 2003 and

2004;

(e) the interim report of the Group for the six months ended 30th June 2005;

(f) the letter from CCIF CPA Limited in relation to the unaudited pro forma financial information

of the Group, the text of which is set out in Appendix II to this Prospectus;

(g) the written consent referred to in paragraph 9 of this Appendix;

(h) circular of the Company dated 18th July 2005 in relation to a discloseable transaction and a

connected transaction (disposal of properties);

(i) circular of the Company dated 15th August 2005 in relation to a discloseable transaction

(disposal of property);

(j) circular of the Company dated 9th February 2006 in relation to the Acquisition; and

(k) the Circular.
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17. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Executive directors KWOK Ying Chuen
YU Won Kong, Dennis
WONG Tak Chung, Andrew

Independent non-executive directors TSO Hon Sai, Bosco
KWOK Chi Sun, Vincent
CHENG Wing Keung, Raymond

Company secretary CHEUNG Ka Lok

Qualified accountant CHEUNG Ka Lok

Principal bankers The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

1 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
G/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong

Hang Seng Bank Limited
83 Des Voeux Road, Central, Hong Kong

Wing Hang Bank Limited
Wing Hang Bank Building, 161 Queen’s Road, Central

Hong Kong

Bank of China
Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong

Auditors Moore Stephens
Certified Public Accountants
905 Silvercord, Tower 2
30 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui
Kowloon
Hong Kong

Registrar in Bermuda Butterfield Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre
11 Bermudiana Road
Pembroke
Bermuda

Registrar in Hong Kong Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong
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Registered office Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

Authorised representatives KWOK Ying Chuen

CHEUNG Ka Lok

Both of Suite 3301, Tower 1,

Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway,

Hong Kong

Legal adviser on Bermuda law Conyers Dill & Pearman

in relation to the Open Offer 2901 One Exchange Square

8 Connaught Place, Central

Hong Kong

Principal place of business Suite 3301, Tower 1, Lippo Centre

89 Queensway

Hong Kong

Stock code 530


